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It is my honour to present to you the Annual Report and Audited Financial 
results for the year ended 31st December 2016. 

The Kenyan Economy
Kenya’s Gross Domestic Product (GDP) is estimated to have expanded by 
5.8% in 2016 compared to a revised growth of 5.7% in 2015. The sectors 
that registered significant improved performance were accommodation 
and food services, information and communication, real estate, and 
transport and storage. The agriculture and electricity supply sectors 
were negatively impacted by persistent drought in the fourth quarter of 
2016. Growth in construction, mining and quarrying, and financial and 
insurance activities decelerated in 2016. 

Key macroeconomic indicators remained relatively stable during the 
review period. Annual average inflation eased to 6.3% in 2016 compared 
to an average of 6.6% in 2015.

The Media Industry
The number of TV frequencies increased from 302 recorded in 2015 
to 312 in 2016. The increase was attributed to the spread of digital 
TV broadcasting, which requires less bandwidth than analogue 
broadcasting, thereby freeing some bandwidth for more frequencies. 
The number of free-to-air TV channels on the digital terrestrial platform 
increased slightly to 63 (from 62 in 2015) while the number of digital 
signal distributors remained unchanged.

The number of radio FM frequencies also increased, by 79 to stand at 
687 in 2016, while the number of radio stations rose from 139 in 2015 to 
175 in 2016.

Circulation of hardcopy newspapers has been on the decline, with 94 
million copies sold in 2016, compared to 98 million in 2015 and 102 
million in 2014. The decline was mainly attributable to increased online 
readership, with online newspaper readers increasing by 18.3 per cent 
to 1,862,943 in 2016. Online newspapers are now easily accessible on 
mobile phones, tablets and computers. The number of Kiswahili daily 
and weekly newspapers in circulation decreased by 15.5% and 22.6%, 
respectively, in 2016. The daily and weekly English newspapers in 
circulation declined by 4.2% and 8.2%, respectively, in the year 2016.

The Standard Group 
The Group results for the year 2016 have seen a remarkable improvement 
from 2015. These improvements have largely been due to the bold and 
decisive decisions that were taken in order to realign the priorities of the 
business and set it in a sustainable growth path. The business currently 
operates in a fully automated environment that has significantly 
enhanced the business processes and controls, thereby increasing 
efficiency and improving service delivery.

Strategic Direction
The Board has continued to develop the Group’s strategy with its focus 
on our core markets, and within the context of the fast pace of change in 
technology and market needs. In the year under review (2016), the Group 
undertook a 5-year strategy formulation exercise whose outcomes were 
bold recommendations that will chart the future direction of the business. 

Policies and Processes
The Group further undertook a documentation exercise with the aim of 
ensuring there are clear policies, procedures, work instructions, templates 
and records to guide the business operations according to best practice 
and sound governance. A balanced scorecard approach to employee 
performance and reward mechanism has also been undertaken in order 
to focus the organisation towards a high performance-driven culture.

Dividends
The board does not recommend dividend payment in the year, to allow 
further investment in our broadcast and digital businesses.

Share Price and Market Capitalisation
The Group had a total of 81.7 million issued shares as at 31st December 
2016 with a market capitalisation of Kshs.1.3 billion compared to Kshs.2.3 
billion at the same time in 2015.  The Group’s earnings per share were 
Kshs 2.14 in the period under review compared to Kshs. (2.95) in 2015. 

Outlook – 2017 and beyond
The year under review yielded positive results and with the strategies 
adopted, the Board is confident that the Group is well equipped to 
withstand the existing industry challenges and attain sustainable 
growth and therefore continue to post good results. 

The Group has embarked on a strategic plan whose main focus is to 
grow the broadcast and digital platform segments, strengthen our digital 
footprint, diversify customer offerings and enhance a performance-
driven workplace culture to promote efficiency and effectiveness in 
product and service delivery.

Acknowledgment 
The Board wishes to acknowledge and thank management, staff, 
readers, viewers, consumers of our other media products, as well as our 
business partners, for their continued and invaluable support for the 
growth of the Group’s business. 

Thank you

Robin Sewell

CHAIRMAN

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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It is my duty and obligation to presents to you the business highlights for 
the year ended 31st December 2016.

The Group turnover increased by 8% compared to 2015 to close at Kshs.4.9 
billion. Revenue growth was mainly driven by significant improvement 
from television and radio segments, which grew by 49% and 47%, 
respectively, to reach Kshs.1 billion (television) and Kshs.317 million 
(radio). The print division, however, declined by 4% due to a tightening 
business environment, especially from the National Government and 
Counties.

The Group’s direct costs remained relatively stable, closing at Kshs.898 
million from Kshs.882 million in 2015. Overhead costs were managed 
tightly with an increase of just 4% to Kshs.2.6 million compared to 2015. 

The Group closed 2016 at a profit before tax of Kshs.269 million against 
a loss of Kshs.396 million in 2015. 

Challenges and Opportunities

The year 2016 presented a number of significant challenges for the 
media industry, with most media houses effecting redundancies of 
staff. Our Group had led the industry in down-sizing in 2015.  Media 
faced significant challenges around the print business brought about 
largely by reduction in government advertising and significant financial 
challenges facing other government institutions, including county 
governments and public universities, most of which failed to honour 
their debt obligations to the media.

The media industry continued to evolve with the emergence of social 
media as a strong influencer of news and opinion. The social media 
space also continues to be a sector that is facing significant challenges 
characterized by misuse and the spread of false news and hate speech.  

The government seems to have finally made real its threat to cut down 
on its advertising in print media and has recently (2017) directed a ban 
on advertising in print media and simultaneously launched its print 
newspaper, MyGov., which is being carried as an insert in newspapers. 
This is in addition to its earlier launch of the digital portal mygov.go.ke. 

The challenges around the County governments included uncollected 
debts arising from delays in funding from the National Treasury and 
reduced spend by the various counties. The National Government, 
through the Government Advertising Agency (GAA), failed to pay 
significant amounts of debts owed to the Group even after intense 
lobbying by media stakeholders in the country.

However, the Group maximized on its broadcasting business, growing 
revenue in both radio and television significantly. Advertising revenue 
growth was also realized from KTN News, Kenya’s only 24-hour news 
channel, as well as from our digital business and The Nairobian weekly 
newspaper. 

During the same period, The Standard’s Re-design project kicked off 

with consultants, editors and designers working on a product that is 
expected to spur growth in the flagship newspaper.

The Group entered into a joint venture deal with Radio Africa Limited 
through Lancia Digital Broadcasting, otherwise known as BAMBA. The 
venture will see the partners develop more digital television channels 
and provide enabling infrastructure to venture into other business 
opportunities such as pay television.

Having finalized the automation processes in 2015, the Group realized 
improved work processes, enhanced management information systems 
and provided management with visibility and control over most 
operations. 

In the advertising front, the betting industry provided new opportunities 
for the Group, with these companies spending for recruitment of clients 
and general publicity.

Product Performance

Copy Circulation
Copy circulation suffered from changing readership and a shift from 
contemporary media platforms to online platforms. This affected mostly 
our flagship brand – The Standard. However, some improvement was 
noticed towards the second half of the year with consolidation of the 
efficiencies brought by usage of newly introduced system of electronically 
tracking circulation performance and using of data generated through 
our new Enterprise Resource Planning System (SAP).

To stem the decline in mainstream newspaper readership, the Group 
revamped the content of its flagship brand as part of the redesign and 
content diversification. 

The Group remains optimistic that in the short and medium terms, 
newspaper readership will stabilize and register growth, and to this 
extent, management will focus on delivering quality and competitive 
content for its readers. 

The Nairobian, which was launched in 2013, has continued to grow 
readership although circulation numbers dropped slightly in 2016 after 
implementation of a price change.

The Standard
The process of re-designing the flagship brand, which began in 2016, 
was successfully concluded with the launch of the re-designed product 
in March 2017. Content has also been revamped, with unique content 
strategy for the weekend papers already in place. 

The gaming industry provided a steady revenue stream while creative 
selling through special supplements and industry-targeted projects 
boosted sales. Sustained market repair and expansion also boosted 
circulation revenue. 

Key to the success of the planned re-design strategy is strengthening 

CEO’S STATEMENT
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The Standard’s content and improving its packaging in order to win 
additional readers without alienating existing buyers. The design has 
been positioned to look youthful and vigorous within The Standard’s 
trade-mark red banner and to excite without shocking.

The Nairobian
The Nairobian has grown to be one of the leading circulating papers 
in the Kenyan market today. However, during the year under review, 
The Nairobian experienced a dip in circulation because of what 
management views as changes in a number of variables. During the 
same year, there was change in price from Sh 40 to Sh 50, competition 
from digital platforms was on the rise with some of the online platforms 
diluting the impact of stories that would have otherwise been first 
published in The Nairobian.

Management has put in place strategic measures to regain the numbers. 
A redesign, planned for the second half of 2017, could bolster its appeal 
by strengthening content and dressing the paper in a distinctive look.

Kenya Television Network (Home Channel)
KTN maintained its second position in share of viewing. The station has 
been driven by its impetus of remaining different and unique with the 
introduction of new programs to increase its market share. KTN changed 
its programming strategy with a view of reaching the wider middle and 
lower class markets.  

KTN NEWS 
Launched in July 2015 as the first 24 hour channel in Kenya, KTN News 
grew in share of viewing to the number three position. Focusing on 
comprehensive, political, business, investigative, current affairs, and 

CE0’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
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county and lifestyle news in Kenya and within the East African region, the 
station has managed to stay relevant in a highly competitive environment.

Owing to the fact that the revenue outlook for TV is generally optimistic, 
management is keen on monetizing KTN News through product-based 
revenue generating strategies.

Radio Maisha
Radio Maisha continued its growth trajectory, solidifying its position as 
the second-best rated station in terms of listenership. Consequently, 
revenue grew to Kshs. 317 million representing a 49% growth above last 
year. The station is expected to continue to do well in 2017 and emerge 
the market leader.

Standard Digital
Standard Digital maintained its top position in terms of market share, 
in the first half of the year, before being overtaken by a pure-play site 
at the close of 2016. Management consequently launched a fight-back, 
which included among other things retraining staff on Search Engine 
Optimization, newsroom integration to improve story quality and a 
review of our digital marketing strategy.

Revenue from this business unit realized growth, closing at KES215 
million.

Human Resources 
During the year under review, the implementation of a standard grading 
structure recommended by Deloitte was implemented. Focus shifted to 
performance management and as a result, a performance management 
strategy was structured and implemented. Staff were trained on the 

new performance management tool that is expected to be in use in 2017. 
Recruitment for the Scribes Inc program - a journalism training program 
targeting graduate journalists - was done and training is expected to be 
completed by mid-2017. 

Future Prospects	
Having reported a profit before tax of Kshs.269 million against a 
loss before tax of Kshs.396 million incurred in 2015, the Board and 
management remain optimistic that the Group will realize further growth 
in 2017.

It is expected that with the launch of the re-designed paper, the benefits 
of revamped content and a new look product will begin to be felt in the 
year. Improvements around the revenue streams, particularly television 
and digital, reinforcement of editorial team to further improve content 
and opportunities around elections, should positively contribute 
towards growth in 2017. Further, investments in new business lines 
and new partnerships are also areas the Group is keen to explore in its 
diversification strategy.

The Group will continue to invest in training to increase the skill sets 
of staff to assure greater productivity and quality content and overall 
product offering.

I sincerely thank the Directors, management team, staff and all our 
stakeholders for their support and commitment to the company.

SAM SHOLLEI
Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2016

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report together with the audited financial 
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016, which disclose the state of affairs of the 
Company and the Group.

1. Principal activities
The principal activities of the Group are the publishing of The Standard Newspaper, television 
broadcasting under the name of Kenya Television Network (KTN), radio broadcasting under 
the name of Radio Maisha, outdoor media advertising under the trade name of Think 
Outdoor and online business under the trade name of Standard Digital.

2.Group results	

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Profit/(loss) before taxation	  269,475	 (395,801)
Taxation (expense)/credit	 (  70,954)	    106,198

Profit for the year transferred	   198,521	 (289,603)
to retained earnings

Attributable to:
Non-controlling interests             	 23,228	 (  48,700)
Owners of the Company	 175,293	 (240,903)

	 198,521	 (289,603)

3.Dividend
The directors do not recommend a dividend payment for the year ended 31 December 2016 
(2015 – Nil).

4. Directors
The directors who served since 1 January 2016 and upto the date of this report are set out 
on page 1.

5. Relevant audit information
The Directors in office at the date of this report confirm that:

— There is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and 
— Each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director so as to 

be aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 
is aware of that information.
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6. Auditors
The auditors, KPMG Kenya, continue in office in accordance with the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015.

7. Business overview
Summary of results

The company remained resilient in a challenging business operating environment which included reduced government advertising in the print 
media, delayed payments of government debt by the Government advertising agency to post good results for the year ended December 2016. 
Management has placed focus to diversify revenue generating businesses and manage costs to ensure that the business continues to thrive in the 
current environment.

The Group turnover increased by 7% compared to 2015 to close at KShs 4.8 billion mainly attributable to increase sales in broadcast-TV, Broadcast-
Radio, Out-door advertising and digital business segments.

Gross profit increased by 6% to KShs 3.5 billion mainly due to increased revenues.  Cost of sales increased by 11% as a result of increased advertising 
commissions and depreciation of assets. Other income reported a positive of KShs 99 million due to elimination of losses in 2015 of foreign exchange 
and impairment of assets. There was also an increase in revenue generated from third party printing services.

Operating costs decreased by 12% to close at KShs 3 billion, the decrease is attributable to reduced staff costs, impairment losses, professional fees 
and sales commissions.
 
Net finance costs closed at KShs 234 million compared to KShs 163 million in 2015. The increase was due to increased investment and working capital 
requirement. 

The Group closed the period 2016 at a profit before tax of KShs 269 million against a loss before tax of KShs 396 million incurred in 2015.

Analysis of Group by business segment

The Group’s business segments are:
•	 Print which includes newspaper copy sales and print advertising. Print has 2 publications, The Standard newspaper and The Nairobian. 
•	 Broadcast TV, which includes 2 television stations KTN-Home and KTN-News. KTN-News is the first 24 hour news channel in East Africa.
•	 Broadcast Radio includes one radio station Radio Maisha.
•	 Out of Home advertising which provides billboard advertising across the country.
•	 Standard Digital which is our online platform.
 
Print

Print circulation volumes have declined by 11% against last year resulting to a decrease in revenue by 8%. The decline is mainly attributable to 
competition from alternative media. The management has strengthened the Editorial and Circulation functions to improve readership. 

Print advertising revenue was above by 20% from KShs 2.057 billion to KShs 2.103 billion mainly due to decline in spending by the government 
advertising agencies.

Broadcast – TV

The TV business is on a recovery trend after the digital migration in 2015. Revenues have begun to stabilize and the segment closed the year at 49% 
above revenue reported in the year 2015. This has been driven by introduction of KTN-News and innovative offerings to customers including but not 
limited to live coverages and sponsorships.

Broadcast – Radio

Radio revenue increase by 4% compared to 2015. This is mainly attributable to the stations strong leadership position, coupled with wider presence 
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through continuous investments and human resources that has seen the station grow its listenership and attract premium clients as evidenced in 
revenue growth. The radio revenue has also received support from roadshows and event activities. 

Out of home 

Out of home revenue has increase by 26% compared to 2015. This is mainly attributable to the investment in digital billboards which are gaining 
traction with the advertisers now engaging on long-term contracts.

Digital

Revenue from indirect revenue streams boosted this year’s performance to 12% above 2015

Financial position

The Group has maintained a strong financial position recording a growth of 11% in net assets. This is in line with the company strategy to enhance 
growth for all its business units.

2017 Management Agenda

The Group continues to be face various challenges in the media industry which include but are not limited to: Migration to digital platform which 
resulted to increased broadcasting costs, increased competition and reduced viewership.

The government move to consolidate advertising through the Government Advertising Agency (GAA) effective July 2015 has had a negative impact 
on the industry by reducing government spend and also delaying payments.

Availability of alternative media providing news and therefore reducing the volumes of newspaper sales.

The management has developed various initiatives to mitigate the challenges and is confident that the Group has positioned itself to withstand the 
challenges and attain sustainable growth and therefore continue to post good results. 

The following initiatives will be implemented in the coming year:

Emphasis will be placed to grow the Broadcast (TV and Radio) and digital platform business segments. The segments are on a growth trend and the 
initiatives will be directed towards ensuring that we are pioneers in developing innovative products to the market.

•	 Strengthen our digital footprint to increase TV viewership
•	 Diversify print products and customers to mitigate on the current declineDevelop a performance driven workplace culture to ensure efficiency 

and effectiveness in service and product delivery
•	 Improve debt collection to cushion the Group from high capital requirement.

8.Approval of financial statements
The financial statements were approved at a meeting of the directors held on 3 March 2017.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Millicent Ng’etich
Secretary
Date: 3 March 2017
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Corporate governance STATEMENT

Good corporate governance practices are essential to the delivery of sustainable stakeholder value. At The Standard Group Limited (the “Group” or 
“Company”), we continue to recognize the fact that implementation of good corporate governance practices gives shareholders and stakeholders 
the assurance and confidence that no effort is being spared to manage their wealth sustainably. The Standard Group Limited fully adheres to its 
obligations as a public listed company in compliance with the various regulations by the CMA and the Nairobi Securities Exchange and the ethical 
standards prescribed in the Company’s Code of Conduct. In addition, as a law abiding corporate, The Standard Group Limited abides by the tenets 
of the Constitution of Kenya and all other laws.
 
In the financial year under review, we continued to strive to achieve high levels of corporate governance by focusing on the following specific areas in 
addition to the ongoing recurrent corporate governance enhancement actions:

•	 Growing shareholder value by continuing to implement our strategy that is aimed at enabling and promoting the long-term prosperity of the 
business. 

•	 Timely and relevant disclosures to provide stakeholders and mostly shareholders with a clear understanding of our business.
•	 Compliance with laws and disclosure of policies to all relevant stakeholders.
•	 Upholding the highest levels of integrity in the organisation’s culture and practices.

Board of Directors
The composition of the Board is in keeping with good corporate governance practices. The role of the Chairman and the Group Chief Executive 
Officer are segregated. The Group Chief Executive Officer is in charge of the day to day running of the business of the Group. A non-executive director 
acts as Chairman of the Board. The Board currently consists of 8 Directors, 5 of whom are Non-Executive Directors. The Directors possess a broad 
range of expertise, diverse professional backgrounds from various sectors and experience required to effectively run the business. All the directors’ 
appointments are subject to confirmation by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. One third of the directors, except the Group Chief Executive 
Officer, retire by rotation annually and are eligible for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

The Board together with the Company Secretary plan the agenda and annual programmes for the Board that enables it to have detailed review of 
the Group’s operations, approve business plans, budgets and financial statements. The Board meets at least four times a year. The Board receives 
all information relevant to the discharge of its obligations in accurate and timely manner enabling it to maintain effective control over strategic, 
financial, operational and compliance issues.

Board of Directors responsibilities
The Board of Directors is responsible for the long term strategic direction of the Group which is aimed at sustainable value creation to maintain a 
profitable growth, and at the same time upholding high standards of corporate governance and business ethics. A summary of Board of Directors 
responsibilities is highlighted below:

•	 The Board provides effective leadership and stewardship in the running of the Company. This enhances shareholder value and ensures long-
term sustainability and growth of the Company.

•	 The Board is the custodian of governance processes and facilitates the setting up of appropriate corporate governance structures for the 
management of Company’s operations. 

•	 Reviews and approves strategies and business plans. This requires the Board to develop an in-depth knowledge of the Company’s business, 
understanding and questioning Management assumptions upon which such plans are based and reaching an independent judgment on the 
probability that the plans will be realised. 

•	 Reviews and approves the Company’s financial objectives, plans and actions, including significant capital allocations and expenditure. 
•	 Establishment of Board Committees, policies and procedures that facilitate the most effective discharge of the Board’s roles and responsibilities. 
•	 Facilitates Board accountability through effective Board evaluation and succession planning.
•	 Evaluates and approves the compensation of the Company’s Group Chief Executive Officer. 
•	 Reviews the succession plans for the position of the Group Chief Executive Officer and the executive management team.
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Board meetings
Board Meetings are held every quarter and in exceptional circumstances as dictated by requirements of business operations. 

This financial year, a total of seven (7) Board Meetings were held.

During their meetings the Board reviews the Group performance against the planned strategies and also approve issues of strategic nature.

Board meetings and members’ attendance for 2016

Member Position 29.01.2016 4.03.2016 24.03.2016 24.06.2016 23.09.2016 05.012.2016 20.12.2016

Robin Sewell Chairman √ √ - √ √ √ -

James Mcfie 
Non-Executive
Director √ - √ - √ √ √

Zehrabanu
Janmohamed 

Non-Executive
Director - √ - √ - √ -

Samuel L. Tiampati 
Non-Executive 
Director √ √ √ - √ - √

Shaun Zambuni
Non-Executive
Director √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Sam Shollei Executive Director √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Orlando Lyomu Executive Director √ √ √ √ - √ √

Francis Munywoki Executive Director √ √ √ √ √ √ √

Board committees
The Board has approved the delegation of certain authorities to Board Committees where applicable, and to the management.

The Board has two Committees both of which are guided by clear terms of reference. The Committees are instrumental in monitoring 
Group operations, conduct of business, systems and internal controls.  The Committees are the Finance and Audit Committee, and the 
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee.

1. Finance and audit committee
This Committee consists of 4 Directors, comprising the Chairman who is a Non-Executive Director and other Directors. The Committee 
meets quarterly or as required.

The Committee plays a vital role in ensuring the Integrity of the financial statements. It assists the Board in evaluating financial and 
management controls and recommending improvements. To further strengthen and ensure independent reports on internal audit, 
the Board has hired Internal Auditors. Internal audit reports, findings and recommendations are presented to the Committee to 
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Member Position 26.02.2016 20.05.2016 16.08.2016 16.09.2016 22.11.2016

James Mcfie Non-Executive 
Director

√ √ √ √ √

Zehrabanu Janmohamed Non-Executive 
Director

√ - √ - -

Samuel L. Tiampati Non-Executive 
Director

√ √ √ √ √

Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive 
Director

√ √ √ √ √

ensure implementation. The Committee further ensures that the financial reporting is accurate and timely.

The Committee met five (5) times during the year.

Finance and Audit Committee meetings and members’ attendance for 2016

2. Human resources and remuneration committee
This Committee consists of 4 Directors, comprising the Chairman who is a Non- Executive Director and other Directors. The Committee meets quar-
terly or as required.

The Committee assists the Board in addressing issues relating to remuneration of Directors and general employee development and motivation.

It also ensures that the remuneration set is within the principles of equity and appropriateness. This Committee is also responsible for monitoring and 
appraising the performance of senior management and review of all human resource policies. In addition, the Committee oversees a transparent 
process for recruitment of Directors to the Board.

The Committee met six (6) times during the year

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee meetings and members’ attendance for 2016

Member Position 26.02.2016 11.05.2016 20.05.2016 16.09.2016 25.10.2016 22.11.2016

Samuel L. Tiampati Non-Executive Director
√ √ √ √ √ √

James Mcfie Non-Executive Director

√ √ √ √ √ √

Zehrabanu Janmohamed Non-Executive Director

√ - - - - -

Shaun Zambuni Non-Executive Director

√ √ √ √ √ √



Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 201618

DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 201618

MR. SAM SHOLLEI
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Sam Shollei has vast experience in 
the media industry and is credited with 
having held the position of Managing 
Director – Mwananchi Communica-
tions in Tanzania - a business that saw 
tremendous growth during his tenure. 
He served as Director – Business De-
velopment at Nation Media Group and 
GM – Monitor Publications in Uganda. 
He has also held director and senior 
management positions in companies 
in Nairobi including Transnational 
Bank. Mr. Shollei holds both MBA and 
Bachelor of Commerce degrees from 
the University of Nairobi.

MR. SHAUN ZAMBUNI
Non Executive Director

Mr Zambuni has a BSc in Management Systems from 
City University London. He has extensive commercial 
and operational experience in businesses spanning 
energy, health care and business service sectors in 
the UK, Australia and Kenya. He is currently CEO of 
a private investment group.

MR. ROBIN SEWELL
Chairman

Mr. Sewell, is a partner in MGI 
Midgley Snelling, an English firm 
of Chartered Accountants. He is a 
fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants in England and 
Wales. He is the Chairman of 
the Group, a position he has held 
since 1st November, 2000.

DR. JAMES BOYD MCFIE
Non Executive Director

Dr. Mcfie was appointed a Non- Executive Director in July 
2007. He is a holder of a PhD. from the Graduate School 
of Business, University of Strathclyde, Glasgow, Scotland 
and is currently a Senior Lecturer at Strathmore Business 
School with over forty (40) years lecturing experience.
He has also previously served as a Director of the Capital 
Markets Authority and a member of the Value Added Tax 
Tribunal of Kenya.
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MR. FRANCIS MUNYWOKI
Managing Director, Print Operations
Holds a BSc — Electrical and Communication 
Engineering, MBA from the London Business School. 
He brings invaluable senior management experience 
spanning more than 10 years with multinational 
organisations leading in information management, 
strategy and projects that leveraged revenue growth 
and improved customer service. He previously worked 
with The Coca-Cola Company and Pepsico Europe.

MR. SAMUEL L. TIAMPATI
Non Executive Director
Mr. Tiampati was appointed a Non-Executive Director 
in July 2007. He holds a Msc. Degree in Marketing and 
Product Management from Cranfield University, United 
Kingdom and a Bachelor of commerce degree from 
the University of Nairobi. He previously served as the 
Managing Director of Kenya Tea Packers Association 
(KETEPA). He is currently the Chief Executive Officer of 
the Kenya Tea Development Agency (KTDA).

MS. ZEHRABANU 
JANMOHAMED
Non Executive Director
Ms. Janmohamed was 
appointed a Non-Executive
Director in July 2007. She is 
an Advocate of the High Court 
of Kenya and a Barrister at 
Lincolns Inn (UK) with over 
twenty (20) years legal practice 
experience. She is a partner at 
Archer & Wilcock Advocates.

MR. ORLANDO LYOMU
Group Finance Director
and Chief Operations Officer
Has 15 years’ experience in Finance 
gained from dynamic and multi - cultural 
organisations. Worked at Total Kenya 
Ltd, where he started his career and 
rapidly rose through the ranks to hold 
various positions including Treasury 
Manager and Chief Accountant. Served 
as a CFO Gulf Energy Limited in charge of 
the group companies. Holds a Bachelor 
of Commerce degree from University of 
Nairobi and is finalizing on his MBA for 
Executives at the Strathmore Business 
School. He is a CPA (K) and a member 
of ICPAK.
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Role of the Company Secretary 
The Company Secretary’s roles and responsibilities include: 
Providing a central source of guidance and advice to the Board, and within the Company, on matters of statutory and regulatory compliance and 
governance. 

- Providing guidance to the Board on how responsibilities can be discharged in the best interest of the Company. 
- Facilitating induction training for new Directors and assisting with the Boards’ professional development. 
- In consultation with the Group Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, ensure effective flow of information within the Board and its Committees - 

and between senior management and Non-Executive Directors. This includes timely compilation and distribution of Board papers and minutes, 
as well as communication of resolutions from Board meetings. 

- Ensuring proper development of Board meetings and providing Directors with information on governance matters. 
- Guiding the Company in taking initiatives to not only disclose corporate governance matters as required by law, but also information of material 

importance to shareholders, customers and other stakeholders.
- Keeping formal records of Board discussions and following up on the timely execution of agreed actions.

Communication with shareholders
The Group is committed to ensuring that shareholders and the financial markets are provided with timely information in regard to its performance.  
This  is  achieved  by  issuing  notices  in  the  press  of  its  half-yearly  and  annual  financial results. The full annual report and financial statements 
are posted on the Group’s website and also distributed to all shareholders and to other parties who have an interest in the Group’s performance, on 
request. The Company has also retained the services of a shares registrar firm which handles day to day requirements of shareholders.

The Group responds to numerous letters from shareholders and interested parties on a wide range of issues.

The Group also invites shareholders to seek clarity on company performance in general meetings.

CORPORATE SOCIAL INVESTMENT REPORT

The Standard Group has a CSR portfolio that has embraced the main pillars of education, health, and the environment. The Company has engaged 
in projects revolving around these pillars and involving every cadre of society, across all elements of the economy and regions of the country.

EDUCATION
Tegla Loroupe Foundation run: The Group sponsored the Tegla Loroupe Foundation Education Marathon that was held in Turkana. Staff participated 
in the event, adding impetus to the noble cause aimed at not only providing scholarships for needy students but also promoting peace in Turkana 
and neighboring communities.
Little Rock Education Walk: As part of its Learning Disabilities Campaign, the Group sponsored Little Rock ECD center, a school for children living with 
disabilities, based in Kibera. The walk was aimed at raising funds to expand the school and enroll more needy students in Nairobi. 
Kenya Community Center for Learning (KCCL Walk): The Group sponsored the learning disabilities campaign with the proceeds of the walk going 
towards, among other things, raising school fees for children living with disabilities.
Mama Sarah Obama Foundation (MSOF): Through the Foundation, the Group sponsored MSOF Zumbathon - a dance event that raised funds towards 
the construction of Mama Sarah Obama Education Center in Kogelo, Siaya County.

HEALTH
The Standard Group has been actively engaged in promoting the society’s well-being through supporting various healthcare-focused initiatives. The 
Group partnered with like-minded stakeholders in the following campaigns:
Mater Heart Run: The Company, through the Corporate Affairs Department, partnered with Mater Hospital to support Mater Heart Run 2016. This 
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is an annual event that aims to assist children from families who cannot afford the cost of cardiac surgery. The run, which attracted thousands of 
Kenyans, provided the Group with a strong brand visibility. Staff members also got the opportunity to participate in the event.
My Eyes Your Eyes Campaign: The Group, in partnership with Kenya Society for the Blind, provided free medical screening to staff and residents of 
Limuru area in Kiambu County. The campaign culminated in the climbing of Mt Longonot and later a “Blind Walk” during the World Sight Day. This 
initiative aims at creating awareness on blindness and preventive measures. 
Beyond Zero Campaign: The Group sponsored The Beyond Zero campaign that seeks to raise funds to reduce maternal deaths. The campaign is 
spearheaded by First Lady Margaret Kenyatta.
Malaika Awards: The Group sponsored Malaika Awards 2016. The awards encompass a walk that aims to raise awareness on disability and culminates 
in an awards dinner that recognizes people living with disabilities but who are doing extraordinary things in society. 
Coast Hospice: Operating in the coastal region of Kenya, Coast Hospice provides health services for terminally ill patients. The Group sponsored the 
Coast Hospice Walk during the Cancer Awareness Month, with funds raised going towards support of the facility’s health services.

ENVIRONMENT
The Standard Group is keen on promoting sustainable development and the protection and conservation of the environment. During the year under 
review, the Group took part in the following initiatives:

-	 Supported the Kenya Red Cross Society (KRCS) Turkana environmental sustainability project and a fundraising for drought mitigation.
-	 Supported the Ndakaini Marathon in association with Nairobi Water and Sewerage Company.

Code of conduct
The Group has a code of conduct which seeks to guide employees in ethical conduct of business. All Directors, management and employees are 
expected to observe high standards of integrity and ethical conduct when dealing with customers, staff, suppliers and regulatory authorities.

Internal control
The  effectiveness  of  the  Group  internal  control  is  monitored  on  a  regular  basis  by  the  Internal  Audit  function.  The Internal Audit function 
reviews the Group compliance with the laid down policies and procedures as well as assessing the effectiveness of the internal control structures. The 
Internal Audit function focuses their attention to areas where the Group could be exposed to greatest risks. The Internal Audit function reports to the 
Audit Committee of the Board.

The Group has established operational procedures and controls to facilitate proper safeguard of assets and accurate financial reporting.

Conflicts of interest
All Directors and management are under duty to avoid conflicts of interest. The Directors are required to disclose outside business interests which 
would conflict with the Group business.

Going concern
The Directors confirm that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future and therefore to continue to use the 
going concern basis when preparing the financial statements.
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Significant change in shareholders
The Company through its Registrars, files monthly and quarterly investor returns in line with the requirements of the Capital Markets Authority and 
the Nairobi Securities Exchange. 

Top ten shareholders  as at 31 December 2016

The ten largest shareholders of the Company as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:

No. Name of shareholder	N o. of shares	 Percentage

1. S.N.G Holdings Limited	 56,422,699	 69.03%

2. Trade World Kenya Limited	    8,906,068	 10.90%

3. Miller Trustees Limited	    8,608,569	 10.53%

4. Gulamali Ismail	     1,213,000	   1.48%

5. Kirtes H Premchand Shah	       429,716	  0.53%

6. The Standard Group Limited Esop Trust	       266,880	  0.33%

7. Saraj Properties Limited	       256,000	  0.31%

8. Denroma Investment Limited	       238,640	  0.29%

9. Julius Gecau	       220,793	  0.27%

10. Eufrazio Juliao Goes	       220,000	  0.27%

Shares Distribution Schedule as at 31 December 2016

		N  umber
Range	N umber of 	 of Shares	 Percentage
 	S hareHolders	H eld

1 . 1 to 500	 2,179	      287,425 	   0.35 %

2 . 501 to 1000 	    396	     288,667 	   0.35 %

3. 1001 to 5000	    635	   1,268,809	    1.55 %

4.  5001 to 10000 	     119	     814,525 	    1.00 %

5. 10001 to 50000	      87 	   1,674,301	    2.05 %

6. 50001 to 100000	        2 	       145,000 	     0.18 %

7. 100001 to 500000 	        9 	   2,102,745 	     2.57 %

8. 500001 to 1000000 	        -	  -	            - %

9 . 1000001 to 2000000000 	       4	 75,150,336 	    91.95 %

                                               Total	 3,431	 81,731,808 	 100.00%

Shareholders Profile as at 31 December 2016
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	 Category	N umber of 	N umber of 
	S hareholders 	S hares held	 Percentage

Foreign Investors 	      96 	 56,830,246 	     69.53%

Local Institutions	    214 	 18,897,370 	      23.12%

Local Individuals	  3,121	   6,004,192	         7.35%

Total	 3,431	 81,731,808	     100.00%

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT
The Standard Group Limited’s strategic purpose is to inspire lives through media and entertainment.  A key provision of the Group’s principles is that 
reward will directly support the business strategy with clear and measurable linkage to business performance.

The Standard Group Limited is pleased to present the Director’s Remuneration report for the year ended 31 December 2016. This report is in compliance 
with CMA Guidelines on Director’s remuneration and the New Companies Act, 2015. The Group’s remuneration structure seeks to recognize the 
contribution the Directors make to the success of the Group while reflecting the value of the roles they play, as well as the level to which they perform 
them. Our approach to recognizing our Director’s contribution to the business is based on the following principles:

- Competitive Remuneration - The remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain highly experienced Directors to effectively direct the affairs of the 
Group. 

- Affordability and Sustainability - Our remuneration is sustainable and affordable in the face of the Group’s performance in the industry.
- Equitable - The reward is equitable and commensurate to the amount of time and skill in delivering the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board comprises of 5 Non-executive directors, including the Chairman and 3 Executive directors as follows:

- Executive Directors: Mr. Sam Shollei, Mr. Orlando Lyomu and Mr. Francis Munywoki
-Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Robin Sewell, Dr. James Boyd Mcfie, Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed, Mr. Shaun Zambuni and Mr. Samuel Lerionka 

Tiampati. 

The remuneration for the Executive Directors is based on the terms of engagement negotiated and outlined in the contract of employment. Other 
benefits are also payable as per the Group’s Reward Policies in force from time to time.

In determining the remuneration for Non-executive Directors, the Board considers the nature and extent of their contribution and responsibilities. In 
addition, Director’s remuneration is subject to regular reviews and external benchmarking to ensure that we continually offer a competitive package 
commensurate with the remuneration for other Non-executive Directors in the same industry.

Non-Executive Directors receive honoraria fees in recognition of the services rendered to the Group, which is payable quarterly in arrears. In addition, 
the Non-executive Directors are paid an attendance fee in recognition of the time spent attending Board and Committee meetings. The Group also 
provides for travel and accommodation costs incurred by the Non-executive Directors in connection with the Group’s business in line with the Group’s 
Travel and Subsistence Policies in force from time to time. 
 
For the Financial year ended 31 December 2016, the consolidated Directors’ fees were KShs 70,081,693. During this period, the Non-Executive Directors 
received no benefits other than honoraria and attendance fees. No loans have been advanced to the Directors.
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements of The Standard Group Limited and its subsidiaries set 
out on pages 22 to 78 which comprise the statements of financial positions of the Group and of the company as at 31 December 2016, and the Group 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the Group and company statements of changes in equity and Group statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Directors’ responsibilities include: determining that the basis of accounting described in Note 2 is an acceptable basis for preparing and presenting 
the financial statements in the circumstances,  preparation and presentation of financial statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 and for such internal control as the directors determine is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Under the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015, the Directors are required to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the company as at the end of the financial year and of the operating results of the Group for that year. 
It also requires the Directors to ensure the company and its subsidiaries keep proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the 
financial position of the Group and the company.

The Directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate accounting policies supported 
by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required 
by the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. The Directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial 
affairs of the Group and the company and of the Group operating results and cash flows.

The Directors further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records which may be relied upon in the preparation of financial 
statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control. 

The Directors have made an assessment of the Group and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe the 
company and its subsidiaries will not be a going concern for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement.

Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements, as indicated above, were approved by the Board of Directors on  
3 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

_____________________________	 ___________________________
Sam Shollei	 Orlando Lyomu
Director	 Director



Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 2016 25



Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 201626

Valuation of trade receivables

See Note 22 to the consolidated and company financial statements.

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed

Valuation of trade receivables is considered a key audit matter because:

—	 About 42% of the Group’s total assets comprises trade receivables. 
The profile of the customers who constitute the trade receivables 
balance varies in character and risk. Amounts due from customers 
may be outstanding for long periods of time before being received by 
the Group and thus potentially rendering the amounts impaired.  This  
could  result  in  an  overstatement  of  the  value  of  trade receivables 
if the recoverability of the amounts is in doubt.

—	 The assessment and application of trade receivables provisions are 
subject to judgment. 

We focused our audit on the Group’s provision methodologies and 
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables.

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

—	 We reviewed the adequacy of controls over the existence and 
recoverability of trade receivables balances. 

—	 We tested a sample of outstanding customer balances as at 31 
December 2016 for post year end receipts by the Group.  

—	 Review and evaluation of directors judgment and assumptions 
with regards to the application of provisions to potentially impaired 
trade receivables.

REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS TO THE MEMBERS OF                                                                                             
THE STANDARD GROUP LIMITED

Report on the audit of the consolidated and company financial statements
 

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of The Standard Group Limited and its subsidiaries (the Group) set out on pages 22 to 78, which comprise 
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, the consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated  financial  statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all the material aspects, of the consolidated and company financial position 
of The Standard Group Limited as at 31 December  2016,  and its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in  
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Company Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group and Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated and company 
financial statements in Kenya, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated and company 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated and company financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Provisions and contingent liabilities in respect of litigations

See Note 38 to the consolidated and company financial statements

The key audit matter

The Group is subject to claims, which could have a significant impact on the 
Group’s results if the potential exposures were to materialise. Management 
applies judgement when considering whether, and how much, to provide 
for the potential exposure of each litigation. We focused on this area given 
the magnitude of potential exposures across the Group, and the complexity 
and judgement necessary to determine whether to provide for, disclose or 
not disclose certain exposures.

How the matter was addressed

Our audit procedures in this area included, among others:

—	 Assessment of the processes and controls over litigations operated 
by Management.

—	 Discussions with the Group’s in-house legal counsel to understand 
the nature of ongoing claims, and to validate the latest status and 
accounting and disclosure implications. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities in respect of litigations (continued)

See Note 38 to the consolidated and company financial statements (continued)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed

—	 Reviewed formal confirmations from the Group’s external legal 
counsel for significant litigation matters to ensure completeness of 
provisioning and disclosure.

—	 Assessed relevant historical information and recent judgments 
passed by the court authorities alongside legal opinion from exter-
nal lawyers to challenge the basis used for the provisions recorded 
or disclosures made by Directors.

—	 Where provisions were not required, we considered the adequacy 
and completeness of the Group’s disclosures made in relation to 
contingent liabilities. 

Other information
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information contained in the annual report but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the consolidated and company financial statements
As stated on page 16, the  Directors  are  responsible  for  the  preparation  and  fair  presentation  of  the consolidated and company financial  
statements  in accordance  with  IFRSs,  and the requirements of the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 and  for such  internal  control  as the  Directors 
determine  is necessary to  enable  the preparation of the consolidated and company financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

Responsibilities of Directors for the consolidated and company financial statements (continued)

In preparing the consolidated and company financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend 
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and 
company financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated and company financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and company 
financial statements.

As  part  of  an  audit  in  accordance  with  ISAs,  we  exercise  professional  
judgment  and  maintain  professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also:

—	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient  and  appropriate  to  provide  a  basis  for  our  opinion.  The  
risk  of  not  detecting  a  material misstatement  resulting  from  fraud  
is  higher  than  for  one  resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

—	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are  appropriate  in  the  circumstances,  
but  not  for  the  purpose  of  expressing  an  opinion  on  the effectiveness 
of the Group’s internal control. 

—	 Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  
reasonableness  of  accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the Directors.

—	 Conclude  on  the  appropriateness  of  the Directors’  use  of  the  going 
concern  basis  of  accounting  and, based  on  the  audit  evidence  
obtained,  whether  a  material  uncertainty  exists  related  to  events  
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to 
cease to continue as a going concern.

—	 Evaluate  the  overall presentation,  structure  and content  of  the  
financial  statements,  including  the disclosures, and whether the 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presentation.



Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 2016 29

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and 
company financial statements (continued)

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We  also  provide  the  Directors  with  a  statement  that  we  have  complied  
with  relevant  ethical requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to  
communicate  with  them  all  relationships  and  other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Directors, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s  report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure  about  the  matter  or  when,  in  
extremely  rare  circumstances,  we  determine  that  a  matter should  not  be  
communicated  in  our  report  because  the  adverse  consequences  of  doing  
so  would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

As required by the Kenyan Companies, Act, 2015 we report to you, based on 
our audit, that:
i.	 We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the 

best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit;

ii.	 In our opinion, proper books of account have been kept by the Company, 
so far as appears from our examination of those books; 

iii.	 The statement of financial position of the Company is in agreement 
with the books of account;

The  Engagement  Partner  responsible  for  the  audit  resulting  in  this  
independent  auditors’  report  is  CPA Joseph Kariuki – P/2102.

8th Floor, ABC Towers
Waiyaki Way
PO Box 40612
00100 Nairobi GPO 

Date: 3 March 2017



Annual Report and accounts for 
the year ended December 201630

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER                                                                     
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

		  2016	 2015
	N ote	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Revenue	 7	      4,815,327	 4,488,399

Direct costs	 8	     (1,332,116)	 (1,203,053)

Other gains/(losses)	 9	          98,918	 (       26,113)

Selling and distribution costs 	 10	 (    472,805)	 (    521,208)

Administrative expenses	 11	 (2,606,130)	 (2,970,188)

Finance costs	 12	 (    233,719)	 (   163,638)

Profit/(loss) before taxation	 13	     269,475	 ( 395,801)

Taxation (expense)/credit	 15(a)	 (     70,954)	      106,198

Profit/(loss) for the year	   	       198,521	 ( 289,603)

Total comprehensive income for the year		        198,521	 ( 289,603)

Attributable to:	

Non-controlling interests	 25	      23,228	 (    48,700)

Owners of the parent		      175,293	 ( 240,903)

		      198,521	 ( 289,603)

Earnings per share – Basic and diluted (KShs)	 16	            2.14	          (2.95)

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

		  2016	 2015
ASSETS	N ote	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment	 17(a)	  1,846,786	 2,029,434
Prepaid operating lease rentals	 18	      115,658	        117,291
Intangible assets	 19(a)	     405,482	      447,497
Deferred tax asset	 27(a)	        35,314	        56,946
		  2,403,240	    2,651,168
Current assets
Inventories	 21(a)	    150,567	         147,141
Trade and other receivables	 22(a)	 1,812,340	   1,502,434
Taxation recoverable	 15(c)	       6,883	         20,418
Bank and cash balances 	 31(b)	      31,901	         34,453

		  2,001,691	    1,704,446

TOTAL ASSETS		  4,404,931	    4,355,614

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves (Page 25)		
Share capital	 23(a)	      408,654	    408,654
Share premium	 23(b)	         39,380	      39,380
Capital redemption reserve	 24(a)	               102	            102
Retained earnings	 24(b)	    1,428,014	  1,252,721

Attributable to owners of the Company		     1,876,150	 1,700,857
Non-controlling interests	 25	     199,944	     176,710

Total equity		  2,076,094	 1,877,573

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability	 27(a)	     145,340	    160,775
Borrowings	 28(a)	     471,594	    530,021

		     616,934	   690,796
Current liabilities
Taxation payable	 15(c)	        17,861	                -
Borrowings	 28(a)	   738,255	  956,929
Due to related parties	 26(b)	     88,588	    105,991
Trade and other payables	 29(a)	   845,454	    677,563
Dividends payable	 14	                 -	     25,392
Employee benefits	 30(a)	       21,745	      21,370

		    1,711,903	 1,787,245

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  4,404,931	 4,355,614

The financial statements on pages 22 to 78 were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2017 
and were signed on its behalf by:

_____________________________	 ____________________________
Director	 Director

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016

		  2016	 2015
ASSETS	N ote	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment	 17(b)	 1,547,869	 1,706,899
Prepaid operating lease	 18	     115,658	       117,291
Intangible assets	 19(b)	   338,607	    380,623
Investments	 20	      70,367	      70,367
		  2,072,501	 2,275,180
Current assets
Inventories	 21(b)	     139,753	    132,447
Trade and other receivables	 22(b)	 1,366,873	 1,161,356
Due from a group company	 26(a)	    174,608	  255,562
Tax recoverable	 15(c)	 -	      13,694
Bank and cash balances 		      28,066	     34,253
		  1,709,300	 1,597,312

TOTAL ASSETS		  3,781,801	 3,872,492

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves (Page 26)
Share capital	 23(a)	 408,654	 408,654
Share premium	 23(b)	    39,380	    39,380
Capital redemption reserve	 24(a)	          102	          102
Retained earnings	 24(b)	 1,212,807	 1,061,690

Shareholders’ equity		  1,660,943	 1,509,826

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability	 27(b)	    145,340	     160,775
Borrowings	 28(b)	    471,594	    530,021

		    616,934	    690,796
Current liabilities
Tax payable	 15(c)	      17,861	                 -
Borrowings	 28(b)	 720,232	     941,971
Due to related parties	 26(b)	    99,180	     116,587
Trade and other payables	 29(b)	 652,797	    572,498
Dividends payable	 14	             -	      25,392
Employee benefits	 30(b)	    13,854	      15,422
		  1,503,924	   1,671,870

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES		  3,781,801	 3,872,492

The financial statements on pages 30 to 84 were approved by the Board of Directors on 3 March 2017
and were signed on its behalf by:

_____________________________	 ____________________________
Director	 Director 

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

	S hare	S hare	C apital	R etained	A ttributable	N on-controlling	T otal
	C apital	 Premium	 redemption	E arnings	 to equity holders	 interests	S hareholders’
			   reserve		  of parent		  equity
2015:	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 1 January 2015	 408,654     	 39,380	 102	 1,534,491	 1,982,627	 225,416	 2,208,043

Total comprehensive income

Loss for the year	              -	          -	     -	 (240,903)	 (240,903)	 (48,700)	 (289,603)
2014 Dividends paid	              -	          -	     -	 (40,867)	 (40,867)	          -	 ( 40,867)

At 31 December 2015	 408,654	 39,380	 102	 1,252,721	 1,700,857	  176,716	 1,877,573

2016:

At 1 January 2016	 408,654	 39,380	 102	 1,252,721	 1,700,857	  176,716	 1,877,573

Total comprehensive income

Profit for the year	            -	 -	 -	 175,293	 175,293	 23,228	 198,521
  
At 31 December 2016	 408,654        	 39,380	 102	 1,428,014              1,876,150	 199,944	 2,076,094

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY                                                                                                                                           
 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

	S hare	S hare	C apital	R etained	
	C apital	 Premium	 redemption	E arnings	
			   reserve		T  otal
2015:	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 1 January 2015	 408,654 	 39,380	 102	 1,292,772	 1,740,908

Total comprehensive income for the year

Loss for the year	         -	 -	 -	 (   190,215)	 (   190,215)
2014 dividends paid	            -	 -	 -	 (    40,867)      	 (    40,867)

At 31 December 2015	  408,654	 39,380	 102	 1,061,690	 1,509,826

2016:

At 1 January 2016	 408,654	 39,380	 102	 1,061,690	 1,509,826

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit for the year	             -	 -	 -	       151,117	        151,117

At 31 December 2016	 408,654	 39,380	 102	 1,212,807	 1,660,943

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

		  2016	 2015
Cash flows from operating activities	N ote	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Cash generated from operations	 31(a)	   756,406	   128,650
Interest paid	 12	 (233,719)	 (163,638)
Tax paid	 15(c)	 (   33,361)	 (  77,256)

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities		  489,326	 (112,244)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets	 19(a)	 (    25,128)	 (    8,653)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment	 17(a)	 (   178,128)	 (456,334)
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment		        13,871	      12,894

Net cash used in investing activities		  (189,385)	 (452,093)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dividends paid	 14	   (25,392)	    (15,476)
Bank loans received	 28(a)	 1,103,522	 1,219,372
Bank loans repaid	 28(a)	 (1,227,831)	 (810,629)

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities 		  (  149,701)	    393,267

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		     150,240	 (171,070)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 		  ( 450,402)	 (279,332)

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December	 31(b)	 ( 300,162)	   (450,402)

The notes set out on pages 36 to 84 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.REPORTING ENTITY
The Standard Group Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability 
Company incorporated in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 
and is domiciled in Kenya. The consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the 
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”). The 
Group primarily is involved in the publishing of The Standard Newspaper, 
television broadcasting under the name of Kenya Television Network 
(KTN), radio broadcasting under the name of Radio Maisha and outdoor 
media advertising under the trade name of Think Outdoor and online 
business under the trade name of Standard Digital.

The address of its registered office and principal place of business is as 
follows:

Standard Group Centre
Mombasa Road
PO Box 30080 - 00100
Nairobi

2.BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
and the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015. 

For the Kenyan Companies Act, 2015 reporting purposes in these 
financial statements, the balance sheet is represented by the statement 
of financial position and profit and loss account is represented by the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the 
historical cost basis.

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Kenya 
shillings (KShs), which is the Company’s functional currency. All 
financial information presented has been rounded to the nearest 
thousand (“KShs‘000”) except where otherwise indicated.

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, management 
has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the 
application of the Group’s accounting policies and the reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results 
may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognised prospectively.

In particular information about significant areas of estimation 
uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies 
that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the 
financial statements are described in note 5.

3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to 
all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements, and 
have been applied consistently by Group entities.

(a) Basis of consolidation Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Group. The Group controls 
an investee when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement in the investee and has the ability to affect those 
returns through its power over the investee. The financial statements 
of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements 
from the date that control commences until the date that control 
ceases. 

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on 
transactions between group companies are eliminated in preparing 
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment 
of the asset transferred. 

The holding Company accounts for dividends from subsidiary 
companies only when the right to receive the dividends is established.

(b) Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue from the sale of newspapers and magazines is recognised 
upon the delivery of goods to customers or when title has passed to 
customers.  Advertising revenue is recognised when advertisements 
are published in the newspaper or aired on television or radio. 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
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receivable, net of VAT and discounts.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit or loss using the 
effective interest method, unless its collectability is in doubt.

Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.

(c)Taxation

Tax expense in profit or loss for the year comprises current tax and 
the change in deferred tax. Current tax is provided on the basis of the 
results for the year, as shown in the financial statements, adjusted in 
accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred income tax is recognised on all temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 
amounts for financial reporting purposes.  Currently enacted tax rates 
are used to determine deferred income tax.
 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow the manner in which the company expects, at the end 
of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is recognised for unused tax losses and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that is probable that future profits 
will be available against which the tax asset can be utilised. Deferred 
tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will 
be realized. Deferred tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates 
enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that 
would follow the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the 
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets 
and liabilities.

(d) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the financial statements when the 
Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, provisions are 
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The 
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

(e) Segmental reporting

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of 
internal reports about components of the Group that are regularly 

reviewed by the chief operating decision maker in order to allocate 
resources to the segments and to assess their performance. The 
Group’s chief decision maker is the chief executive officer. The Group 
organizes its activity by business lines and these are defined as 
the Group’s reportable segments.  The three business segments are 
Publishing, Television and Radio. 

(f) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost 
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition of the asset.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or 
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised 
impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for 
qualifying assets, capitalised borrowing costs. 

Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of 
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for 
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as 
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for 
their intended use.

(ii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is 
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the 
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. 
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment 
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
	
(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated to 
write off the cost in equal annual instalments over their expected 
useful lives.  The annual rates used are:
                                                                                                                                                      	
	 2016                       	 2015

Buildings	 2%	 2%
Plant and machinery	 5% - 10%	 5% - 10%
Motor vehicles	 25%	 25% - 67%
Furniture, fittings and equipment	 10%   33⅓%	 10%   33⅓%

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
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(iv) Disposal of property, plant and equipment

Gains and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment 
(calculated as the difference between the net proceeds from 
disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

(g) Intangible assets

(i) Software

Computer software and other intangible assets are measured at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.  The 
costs are amortised over the expected useful lives of the software 
on the straight line basis. The annual rates used for amortisation 
are:

Computer software              33⅓%  

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are 
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.
 
(ii) Trademarks and frequency

Trademarks and frequency are initially recognised at cost. At 
each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of 
the trademarks and frequency to determine whether there is any 
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. 
The trademarks and frequency have indefinite useful lives and 
are tested for impairment at each reporting date.

(h) Leasehold land

Payments to acquire leasehold interest in land are treated as prepaid 
operating lease rentals and amortised over the period of the lease.

(i) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets other than 
inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. 
If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset 
or its cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that generates 
cash flows that are largely independent from other assets and groups. 

Impairment losses are recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment 
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units reduce the 
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a 
pro rata basis.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is 
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 
to the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been recognized. 

(j) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease 
transfer substantially all risks and rewards of ownership to the Group 
as the lessee. On initial recognition, the leased asset is measured at 
an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and present value of the 
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset 
is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable 
to that asset.  All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are recognised in profit or 
loss on the straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
 

(k) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour 
costs and the overheads incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.  Costs of direct materials and general 
consumable stores are determined on the weighted average cost 
basis.  Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less 
the estimated cost to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, 
selling and distribution. Film stock is expensed when aired.

(l) Foreign currency translations

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, 
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency 
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, 
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
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at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at 
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated 
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a 
foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains and losses on exchange 
are dealt with in the profit or loss.

(m) Financial instruments

The Group classifies its current non – derivative financial assets 
under loans and receivables. The Group classifies its non – derivative 
financial liabilities into other financial liabilities category.

(i) Non-derivative financial assets and financial 
liabilities – recognition and de-recognition

The Group recognizes loans and receivables on the date when 
they are originated. All other non – derivative financial assets 
and liabilities are recognised on the trade date.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual 
rights to the cash flows of the asset expire, or it transfers the 
rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in 
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers or retains 
substantially all the risks and reward of ownership and does not 
retain control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such a 
derecognized financial asset that is created or retained by the 
Group is recognised as separate asset or liability. The Group 
derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations 
are discharged or cancelled or expire.

(ii) Non-derivative financial assets – measurement

Loans and receivables 
These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, 
these assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective 
interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include 
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the Group’s cash management policies.

(iii) Non-derivative financial liabilities - measurement

Non- derivative financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair 
value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent 
to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.

(iv)Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount 
reported in the statement of financial position when there is a 
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amount and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset 
and settle the liability simultaneously.

(n) Impairment

(i) Financial assets

At each reporting date the Group assesses whether there is 
objective evidence that financial assets not carried at fair value 
through the statement of profit or loss are impaired. Financial 
assets are impaired when objective evidence demonstrates that 
a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset 
and that the loss event has an impact on the future cash flows of 
the asset than can be estimated reliably.

The Group considers evidence of impairment at both a specific 
asset and collective level. All individually significant financial 
assets are assessed for specific impairment. All significant assets 
found not be specifically impaired are then collectively assessed 
for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified. 
Assets that are not individually significant are then collectively 
assessed for impairment by combining together financial assets 
with similar risk characteristics.

Objective evidence that financial assets (including equity 
securities) are impaired can include default or delinquency 
by a borrower, restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Group on terms that the Group would otherwise not consider, 
indications that a borrower or issuer will enter bankruptcy, 
the disappearance of an active market for a security or other 
observable data relating to a Group of assets such as adverse 
changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers in the 
Group or economic conditions that correlate with defaults in the 
Group.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical 
trends of the probability of default, timing of recoveries and the 
amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as 
to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that 
the actual losses are likely to be greater or less than suggested 
by historical modelling. Default rates, loss rates and the expected 
timing of future recoveries are regularly benchmarked against 
actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried at amortised cost are 
measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial assets and the present value of estimated cash flows 
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discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Losses 
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and reflected 
in an allowance account against loans and advances. Interest 
on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the 
unwinding of the discount.

When a subsequent event causes the amount of impairment 
loss to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed through the 
statement of profit or loss.

(o) Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit 
scheme for its permanent and pensionable employees. The 
assets of the scheme are held in separate trustee administered 
fund, which is funded by contributions from both the group 
companies and employees. The Group and all its employees 
also contribute to the National Social Security Fund, which is a 
defined contribution scheme. The Group’s contributions to the 
defined contribution schemes are recognised in the profit or loss 
in the period which related services are rendered by employees.  
The Group has no further obligation once the contributions have 
been paid.

(ii) Staff gratuity (Defined Benefit Plan)

The Group also has a defined benefit plan for senior management 
staff. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the defined benefit 
pension plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future 
benefit that employees have earned in return for their service 
in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to 
determine its present value. 

The provision for liability recognised in the financial statements 
is the estimated entitlement as a result of services rendered by 
employees up to the financial reporting date. The defined benefit 
scheme is unfunded.

The calculation is performed every three years by a qualified 
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Group 
recognises all expenses related to defined benefit plan in 
employee costs in profit or loss and all actuarial gains or losses 
in other comprehensive income.

The Group recognises gains and losses on the curtailment or 
settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or 

settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment comprises 
any resulting change in the present value of defined benefit 
obligation and any related actuarial gains and losses and past 
service cost that had not previously been recognised. The gain 
or loss on settlement is the difference between the present value 
of the defined benefit obligation being settled as determined on 
the date of settlement and the settlement price, including any 
plan assets transferred and any payments made directly by the 
Group in connection with the settlement.

(iii) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service 
is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation 
to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the 
employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(iv) Share-based payment

The grant date fair value of equity settled share-based payment 
awards granted to employees is generally recognised as an 
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity over the vesting 
period of the awards. The amount recognised as an expense 
is adjusted to reflect number of awards for which the related 
service and non-market performance conditions are expected 
to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognised is based 
on the number of awards that meet the related service and non-
market performance conditions at the vesting date. 

For share based payment awards with non-vesting conditions, 
the grant date fair value of share based payment is measured 
to reflect such conditions and there is no true up for differences 
between expected and actual outcomes.

(p) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash 
equivalents include short term liquid investments which are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which were within three 
months to maturity when acquired less advances from banks 
repayable within three months from date of disbursement or 
confirmation of the advance.

(q) Group overheads	

Direct costs are charged to the respective group companies while all 
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shared group expenses are apportioned to the respective companies 
on the basis of turnover.
 
(r) Related party transactions 

The Group discloses the nature, volume and amounts outstanding at 
the end of each financial year from transactions with related parties, 
which include transactions with the directors, executive officers and 
Group or related companies. 

(s) Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data 
for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive 
potential ordinary shares.

(t) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Equity 
instruments issued by a Group entity are recognised at the proceeds 
received, net of direct issue costs. Incremental costs directly 
attributable to the issue of ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are 
recognised as a reduction from equity.

(u) Finance income and finance costs

Interest expense on borrowings is recognized in profit or loss using 
the effective interest rate unless they are directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in which 
case they are capitalized to that asset.

Foreign exchange gains and losses on financial assets and financial 
liabilities are reported on a net basis as either finance income or 
finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are 
in a net gain or net loss position.

(v) New standards and interpretations

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations 
effective and adopted during the year

The Group has adopted the following new standards and 
amendments during the year ended 31 December 2016, including 
consequential amendments to other standards with the date of 
initial application by the Group being 1 January 2016. The nature 
and effects of the changes are explained below:

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
(Amendments to IFRS 11)

The amendments require business combination accounting to 
be applied to acquisitions of interests in a joint operation that 
constitutes a business. Business combination accounting also 
applies to the acquisition of additional interests in a joint operation 
while the joint operator retains joint control. The additional 
interest acquired will be measured at fair value. The previously 
held interest in the joint operation will not be re-measured. The 
amendments apply prospectively for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016. 
The adoption of these changes did not have a significant impact 
on the financial statements of the Group since the Group does not 
have joint operations.

Amendments to IAS 41- Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS 16 
and IAS 41)  

The amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 
IAS 41 Agriculture require a bearer plant (which is a living plant 
used solely to grow produce over several periods) to be accounted 
for as property, plant and equipment in accordance with IAS 16 
Property, Plant and Equipment instead of IAS 41 Agriculture. The 
produce growing on bearer plants will remain within the scope of 
IAS 41.The new requirements are effective from 1 January 2016. 

The adoption of these changes did not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group as the Group does not have 
bearer plants.

New standard or amendments 

—	 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
(Amendments to IFRS 11)

—	 Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 – Clarification of Acceptable 
Methods of Depreciations and Amortisation 

—	 Amendments to IAS 41 - Bearer Plants (Amendments to IAS 16 
and IAS 41)

New standard or amendments

—	 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements            
(Amendments to IAS 27)

—	 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 

—	 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

—	 Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1) 
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Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation (Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38) 
The amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 
explicitly state that revenue-based methods of depreciation 
cannot be used for property, plant and equipment.

The amendments to IAS 38 Intangible Assets introduce 
a rebuttable presumption that the use of revenue-based 
amortisation methods for intangible assets is inappropriate. 
The presumption can be overcome only when revenue and the 
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible asset are 
‘highly correlated’, or when the intangible asset is expressed as 
a measure of revenue. The amendments apply prospectively for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. 

The adoption of these changes did not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group as the Group does not apply 
revenue-based methods of depreciation or amortization.

Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendments 
to IAS 27)
The amendments allow the use of the equity method in separate 
financial statements, and apply to the accounting not only for 
associates and joint ventures but also for subsidiaries. The 
amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016. 

The adoption of these changes did not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group since the Group does not have 
interests in other entities and does not apply the equity method 
to account for subsidiaries.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
IFRS 14 provides guidance on accounting for regulatory 
deferral account balances by first-time adopters of IFRS. To 
apply this standard, the entity has to be rate-regulated i.e. the 
establishment of prices that can be charged to its customers for 
goods and services is subject to oversight and/or approval by an 
authorised body. 

The standard is effective for financial reporting years beginning 
on or after 1 January 2016. 

The adoption of these changes did not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group given that the Group is not a 

first time adopter of IFRS.

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28)

The amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
clarifies which subsidiaries of an investment entity are 
consolidated instead of being measured at fair value through 
profit and loss. The amendment also modifies the condition in the 
general consolidation exemption that requires an entity’s parent 
or ultimate parent to prepare consolidated financial statements. 
The amendment clarifies that this condition is also met where 
the ultimate parent or any intermediary parent of a parent 
entity measures subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in 
accordance with IFRS 10 and not only where the ultimate parent 
or intermediate parent consolidates its subsidiaries. 

The amendment to IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
requires an entity that prepares financial statements in which all 
its subsidiaries are measured at fair value through profit or loss 
in accordance with IFRS 10 to make disclosures required by IFRS 
12 relating to investment entities.
	
The amendment to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures modifies the conditions where an entity need not 
apply the equity method to its investments in associates or joint 
ventures to align these to the amended IFRS 10 conditions for not 
presenting consolidated financial statements. 

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception 
(Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28) - continued

The amendments introduce relief when applying the equity 
method which permits a non-investment entity investor in an 
associate or joint venture that is an investment entity to retain 
the fair value through profit or loss measurement applied by the 
associate or joint venture to its subsidiaries.

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The adoption of these changes did not have an impact on the 
financial statements of the Group since the Group does not apply 
the consolidation exemption and does not have interests in other 
entities, associates or joint ventures.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE                                                                                  
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)
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Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 1)
	
The amendments provide additional guidance on the 
application of materiality and aggregation when preparing 
financial statements. The amendments apply for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and early application is 
permitted. 

The effect of these changes have been applied in these financial 
statements. These did not have a significant impact. 

Annual improvements cycle (2012-2014) – various standards

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 31 
December 2016

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and in-
terpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 31 Decem-
ber 2016, and have not been early adopted by the Group. The 
directors are in the process of assessing the impact of these stan-
dards on the Group and parent entity’s financial statements. 
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New standard or amendments Effective for annual 
periods beginning on 
or after

—	 Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) 1 January 2017

—	 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 
Unrealized Losses (Amendments to IAS 12)

1 January 2017

—	 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

1 January 2018

—	 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014) 1 January 2018

—	 IFRS 16 Leases                                                                            1 January 2019

—	 Classification and Measurement of 
Share-based Payment transactions 
(Amendments to IFRS 2)

1 January 2018

—	 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 
(Amendments to IFRS 4)

1 January 2018

—	 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture 
(Amendments to IFRS10 and IAS 28)

To be determined

—	 IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency 
Transactions and Advance Consideration

1 January 2018

IAS 19 Employee 
Benefits

Discount rate: regional market issue. 
Clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used 
in estimating the discount rate for post-employment 
benefits should be denominated in the same 
currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, the depth 
of the market for high quality corporate bonds 
should be assessed at currency level).

The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not have a defined benefits 
scheme.

IAS 34 Interim 
Financial 
Reporting

Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim 
financial report’. 
Clarifies the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the interim 
report’ and requires a cross-reference
The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not produce an interim 
financial report.

IFRS 7 
Financial 
Instruments: 
Disclosures 
(with 
consequential 
amendments to 
IFRS 1)

Servicing contracts. 
Adds additional guidance to clarify whether a 
servicing contract is continuing involvement in a 
transferred asset for the purpose of determining the 
disclosures required. 
The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not have servicing contracts 
for transferred assets.
 
Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to 
condensed interim financial statements. 
Clarifies the applicability of the amendments 
to IFRS 7 on offsetting disclosures to condensed 
interim financial statements.
The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not produce condensed interim 
financial statements.

IAS 19 
Employee 
Benefits

Discount rate: regional market issue. 
Clarifies that the high quality corporate bonds used 
in estimating the discount rate for post-employment 
benefits should be denominated in the same 
currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, the depth 
of the market for high quality corporate bonds 
should be assessed at currency level).

The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not have a defined benefits 
scheme.

IAS 34 Interim 
Financial 
Reporting

Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim 
financial report’. 
Clarifies the meaning of ‘elsewhere in the interim 
report’ and requires a cross-reference
The adoption of these changes did not have an 
impact on the financial statements of the Group 
since the Group does not produce an interim 
financial report.

 
3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

(v)New standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii)New and amended standards and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 31 
December 2016 (continued)
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apart from the standards noted below, the application of these 
amendments will have no material impact on the disclosures or on the 
amounts recognised in the Group’s financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative (Amendments to IAS 7) 
The amendments require disclosures that enable users of financial 
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing 
activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash 
changes.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2017, with early adoption permitted.

To satisfy the new disclosure requirements, the Group intends to present 
a reconciliation between the opening and closing balances for liabilities 
with changes arising from financing activities.

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses (Amendments 
to IAS 12)
The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for 
unrealised losses on debt instruments measured at fair value.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2017, with early adoption permitted.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its consolidated financial 
statements resulting from the amendments. So far, the Group does not 
expect any significant impact.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014)
It replaces parts of IAS 39 - Financial Instruments, Recognition and 
Measurement that relates to classification, measurement and recognition 
of financial assets and financial liabilities. IFRS 9 requires financial assets 
to be classified, at initial recognition as either measured at fair value or 
at amortised cost. The classification depends on the entity’s business 
model for managing its financial instruments and the characteristics of 
the contractual cash flows of the instrument. For financial liabilities, the 
standard retains most of the requirements of IAS 39. The main change is 
that, in cases where the fair value option is applied for financial liabilities, 
the part of a fair value change arising from a change in an entity’s own 
credit risk is recorded in other comprehensive income rather than in the 
profit or loss, unless this creates an accounting mismatch.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the 
financial statements. The standard is effective for periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2018. 

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Effective 31 December 
2018)

The IFRS specifies how and when an IFRS reporter will recognise revenue 

as well as requiring such entities to provide users of financial statements 
with more informative, relevant disclosures. The standard provides a 
single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with 
customers in recognising revenue being: identify the contract(s) with a 
customer; identify the performance obligations in the contract; determine 
the transaction price; allocate the transaction price to the performance 
obligations in the contract; and recognise revenue when (or as) the entity 
satisfies a performance obligation.

The Group is currently evaluating the impact of the new standard on the 
financial statements.

IFRS 16: Leases
On 13 January 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases which sets out the 
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 
of leases for both parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the 
supplier (‘lessor’). The standard defines a lease as a contract that conveys 
to the customer (‘lessee’) the right to use an asset for a period of time 
in exchange for consideration. A company assesses whether a contract 
contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time.

The standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating 
leases or finance leases for a lessee and introduces a single lessee 
accounting model. 

All leases are treated in a similar way to finance leases. Applying that 
model significantly affects the accounting and presentation of leases and 
consequently, the lessee is required to recognise:
 
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

(v) New standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 31 
December 2016 (continued)

IFRS 16: Leases - continued
(i)	 assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 

months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A company 
recognises the present value of the unavoidable lease 
payments and shows them either as lease assets (right-of-use 
assets) or together with property, plant and equipment. If lease 
payments are made over time, a company also recognises a 
financial liability representing its obligation to make future 
lease payments;

(ii)	 depreciation of lease assets and interest on lease liabilities in 
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profit or loss over the lease term; and
(iii)	separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion 

(presented within financing activities) and interest (typically 
presented within either operating or financing activities) in the 
statement of cash flows.

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting 
requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify 
its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account 
for those two types of leases differently. However, compared to 
IAS 17, IFRS 16 requires a lessor to disclose additional information 
about how it manages the risks related to its residual interest in 
assets subject to leases.

The standard does not require a company to recognise assets 
and liabilities for:

(i) short-term leases (i.e. leases of 12 months or less), and;
(ii)leases of low-value assets 

The new Standard is effective for annual periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted insofar 
as the recently issued revenue Standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers is also applied).

The Group is currently assessing the impact of this standard.

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2)  

The following clarifications and amendments are contained in 
the pronouncement:

— Accounting for cash-settled share-based payment transactions 
that include a performance condition

Up until this point, IFRS 2 contained no guidance on how vesting 
conditions affect the fair value of liabilities for cash-settled 
share-based payments. IASB has now added guidance that 
introduces accounting requirements for cash-settled share-
based payments that follows the same approach as used for 
equity-settled share-based payments.

3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

(v) New standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 31 
December 2016 (continued)

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 
Transactions (Amendments to IFRS 2) (continued) 

— Classification of share-based payment transactions with net 
settlement features

IASB has introduced an exception into IFRS 2 so that a share-
based payment where the entity settles the share-based 
payment arrangement net is classified as equity-settled in its 
entirety provided the share-based payment would have been 
classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement 
feature.
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— Accounting for modifications of share-based payment 
transactions from cash-settled to equity-settled

Up until this point, IFRS 2 did not specifically address situations 
where a cash-settled share-based payment changes to an 
equity-settled share-based payment because of modifications of 
the terms and conditions. The IASB has introduced the following 
clarifications:

— On such modifications, the original liability recognised 
in respect of the cash-settled share-based payment 
is derecognised and the equity-settled share-based 

payment is recognised at the modification date fair 
value to the extent services have been rendered up to the 
modification date.

— Any difference between the carrying amount of the liability 
as at the modification date and the amount recognised in 
equity at the same date would be recognised in profit and 
loss immediately.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018. Earlier application is permitted. 
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. However, 
retrospective application if allowed if this is possible without 
the use of hindsight. If an entity applies the amendments 
retrospectively, it must do so for all of the amendments described 
above.

The Group is assessing the potential impact on its financial 
statements resulting from the application of the amendments to 
IFRS 2.

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts (Amendments to IFRS 4)

The amendments in Applying IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ with 
IFRS 4 ‘Insurance Contracts’ (Amendments to IFRS 4) provide 
two options for entities that issue insurance contracts within the 
scope of IFRS 4:

— an option that permits entities to reclassify, from profit or loss to 
other comprehensive income, some of the income or expenses 
arising from designated financial assets; this is the so-called 
overlay approach;

(ii) New and amended standards and interpretations 
in issue but not yet effective for the year ended 31 
December 2016 (continued)

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance 
Contracts (Amendments to IFRS 4) (continued)

— an optional temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9 for 
entities whose predominant activity is issuing contracts within 
the scope of IFRS 4; this is the so-called deferral approach.

The application of both approaches is optional and an entity 
is permitted to stop applying them before the new insurance 
contracts standard is applied.

An entity applies the overlay approach retrospectively to qualifying 
financial assets when it first applies IFRS 9. Application of the 
overlay approach requires disclosure of sufficient information 
to enable users of financial statements to understand how the 
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amount reclassified in the reporting period is calculated and the 
effect of that reclassification on the financial statements.

An entity applies the deferral approach for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. Predominance is assessed 
at the reporting entity level at the annual reporting date that 
immediately precedes 1 April 2016. Application of the deferral 
approach needs to be disclosed together with information that 
enables users of financial statements to understand how the 
insurer qualified for the temporary exemption and to compare 
insurers applying the temporary exemption with entities applying 
IFRS 9. The deferral can only be made use of for the three years 
following 1 January 2018. Predominance is only reassessed if 
there is a change in the entity’s activities.

The adoption of these changes is not expected to have a 
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group since 
the Group does not issue insurance contracts within the scope of 
IFRS 4.

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28)

The amendments require the full gain to be recognised when 
assets transferred between an investor and its associate or joint 
venture meet the definition of a ‘business’ under IFRS 3 Business 
Combinations. Where the assets transferred do not meet the 
definition of a business, a partial gain to the extent of unrelated 
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture is recognised. 
The definition of a business is key to determining the extent of the 
gain to be recognised.

The effective date for these changes has now been postponed 
until the completion of a broader review.

The adoption of these changes is not expected to have a 
significant impact on the financial statements of the Group since 
the Group does not transact with associates or joint ventures.

3.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(Continued)

(v) New standards and interpretations (continued)

(ii)New and amended standards and interpretations in issue but 
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2016 (continued)

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and 
Advance Consideration

This Interpretation applies to a foreign currency transaction (or 

part of it) when an entity recognises a non-monetary asset or 
non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of 
advance consideration before the entity recognises the related 
asset, expense or income (or part of it).   

This Interpretation stipulates that the date of the transaction 
for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on 
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or 
part of it) is the date on which an entity initially recognises the 
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the 
payment or receipt of advance consideration.

This Interpretation does not apply to income taxes, insurance 
contracts and circumstances when an entity measures the 
related asset, expense or income on initial recognition:   

(a)at fair value; or
(b)at the fair value of the consideration paid or received at a date 

other than the date of initial recognition of the non-monetary asset 
or non-monetary liability arising from advance consideration 
(for example, the measurement of goodwill applying IFRS 3 
Business Combinations).

The amendments apply retrospectively for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application 
permitted.  
The adoption of these changes will not have an impact on the 
amounts and disclosures of the Group’s consolidated financial 
statements.

The Group did not early adopt new or amended standards in the 
year ended 31 December 2016.

4.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 
AND POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including 
credit risk and the effects of changes in debt, liquidity risk, foreign currency 
exchange rates and interest rates. The Group’s overall risk management 
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and 
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance.
 
Risk management is carried out by the Finance department under policies 
approved by the Board of Directors.  Finance identifies, evaluates and 
hedges financial risks.  The Board provides written principles for overall 
risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas such 
as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative 
and non-derivative financial instruments and investing excess liquidity.  

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to customers 
with an appropriate credit history.
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Africa
For better coverage of our conti-
nent, we now have an Africa page – 
separate from World -- to carry all 
the big breaking stories from the re-
gion. All our international pages now 
feature sidebars and infographics to 
enrich coverage.

Metropolitan
For the Nairobi reader, Metropoli-
tan is a locally-oriented coverage 
that will focus on happenings in the 
city’s neighbourhoods and suburbs. 
It will cover courts and crime, health 
and politics and events at the coun-
ty assembly.

School & College
We will break new ground on trends 
in the education sector, and  pro-
vide insightful analysis on policy 
statements that affect teachers 
and students. Interviews with edu-
cation stakeholders will flesh out is-
sues that concern learners.

The Explainer
Sometimes it is more informative to 
show you the news, rather than tell 
you – so we have created The Ex-
plainer. It will display stories in visu-
al form using modern story-telling 
techniques and infographics to ex-
plain the news and social topics.

Hustle
Every Wednesday will showcase 
Hustle, a magazine that will fea-
ture inspiring stories of entrepre-
neurs, and tackles money – how to 
make it, how to invest it and how to 
spend it.

#Hashtag
Hashtag is a combo education 
magazine of issues in the sector and 
lifestyle of young people undergoing 
their tertiary education, but of in-
terest beyond. It is also full of career 
tips and untold stories of some of 
the country’s top personalities.

Financial Standard
The Financial Standard will offer  
authoritative, reliable and precise 
business analysis, and the latest in 
the tech-sphere. It will give tips on 
entrepreneurship and wealth cre-
ation and management for both 
fresh and seasoned business minds. 

From the Courts
Crime ends in the court, but that is 
where the drama climaxes with pro-
duction and rebuttal of evidence. In 
new coverage, we take you to the 
sanctum of justice in a way no oth-
er media does. Visit us for sizzling 
court stories.

What’s New
Kipkoech Tanui, Deputy Editorial  Director, ME. The media 

landscape is changing – and the ‘Standard’ is 
changing. Our overriding philosophy is to serve our 

media consumers better while defending public 
interest. In the redesign, we have strengthened our 

position to break big stories and go behind the story and 
explain it using modern story-telling techniques. We 

have also rethought our advertising spaces to enable 
our clients convey their messages effectively.  Our 

overall aim is to serve our existing media consumers, 
as well as the unserved and underserved.

HUSTLE
STARTING A BUSINESS, MAKING MONEY AND GETTING CONNECTED

Saturday, January 25, 2010  |  The Standard

How the ‘banana 
whisper’ overcame

fAIlURE
to become a success 
Lessons Learned, P. 8

BLACKJACK JEAN COMPANY: ‘I CrEAtEd JEANs tO fIt KENYAN BOdIEs’  How I Did It, P. 7

HOw tO stArt A sUCCEssfUL BUsINEss wItH ONLY sH200,000  Get Ahead, P. 4

Listening while 
studying
How does it affect your concentration?

Cover Story, P. 6

STUDENT FACE-OFF: IS GAMBLING A GOOD WAY OF FINANCING SCHOOL FEES?  P. 12
TheStandard

Thursday, January 00, 2017

#Education Matters

FINANCIAL STANDARD

MANUFACTURING GRAVEYARDS
Some Kenyan manufacturing companies are abandoning country over high operation costs 
and the slump in global steel prices that has seeped into the local production industry, and soon, 
there will be fewer metal factories in Nairobi’s Industrial Area.  P. 5-6

Mylan CEO 
Bresch 
talks 
Epipen 
price hike 
P. 5

The Standard   
TUESDAY, 

MARCH 00, 2017
What does 
Kenya reap in 
Chinese 
investments?

Dr Patrick Njoroge, the governor of the 
Central Bank of Kenya, challenges 

Kenyans living abroad to transfer 
innovations to the country not 
just their money.  P. 4
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From the Courts

Two sons of slain drug baron Ibrahim Akasha appear before a US grand jury

The sons, two others are charged 
with four counts of conspiring to 
import narcotics into the US. 

By Mercy Kahenda
name@standardmedia.ke.co

Slain drug baron Ibrahim Akasha’s 
two sons and their co-accused could 
spend the rest of their lives in US pris-
ons. Baktash Akasha (40), Ibrahim Aka-
sha (28), Indian national Vijaygiri Gos-
wami (55) and Gulam Hussein (61) from 
Pakistan appeared before a US grand 
jury in New York on Tuesday charged 
with four counts of conspiring to import 
narcotics into the US. 

The four were also charged with 
engaging in production of tonnes of 
narcotics within Kenya and throughout 
Africa.

According to New York judicial 
authorities, each count carries a man-
datory minimum sentence of 10 years 
and a maximum of life in prison, with 

the judge presiding over their case hav-
ing the final say. “The minimum and 
maximum potential sentences in this 
case are prescribed by Congress and are 
provided here for informational pur-
poses only, as any sentencing of the 
defendants will be determined by the 
judge,” said the officials in statement.

The cases are being handled by the 
Terrorism and International Narcotics 
Unit with assistant US Attorneys 
Michael Lockard and Emil Bove III pros-
ecuting.

Reports from American judicial 
authorities revealed the US Drug 
Enforcement Administration (DEA) and 
anti-terrorism agents based in Nairobi 
participated in the raid on the suspects’ 
homes and properties in Mombasa’s 
Nyali estate on Friday. 

The four had been fighting extradi-
tion to the US in a protracted legal bat-
tle before Mombasa courts. 

Their defence lawyers have described 
their transfer to the US as illegal and a 

violation of court orders that had 
stayed their extradition. 

Arrest warrant
The four were charged a day after 

they were quietly picked from their 
homes in Mombasa and spirited to the 
US on the strength of an arrest warrant 
issued by a New York court. 

An indictment issued by US Judge 
Gabriel Gorenstein on October 28, 2014 
and delivered to Kenyan authorities 
through the US Embassy in Nairobi on 
November 10 2014, said the four were 
wanted to stand trial in the US District 
Court for the Southern District of New 
York. 

The hunt for the Akashas did not 
begin on Monday. On March 28, 2014, 
Baktash met two ‘client’s’ posing as rep-
resentatives of a Colombian drug traf-
ficking organisation and agreed to sup-
ply pure heroin. 

Unknown to him, his ‘clients’ were 
DEA agents from the US and their con-
versations were being recorded.

In Brief

Nakuru: Man who 
stabbed magistrate 
gets three years in jail

n  A man who attacked a mag-
istrate in a Nakuru court after 
a sentence to three years im-
prisonment was pronounced on 
him has admitted to have at-
tempted to kill the magistrate 
and the complainant during the 
conclusion of a case of assault 
he was facing. Michael Kuhora 
Njeri who was arraigned in court 
early yesterday under tight se-
curity pleaded guilty to the at-
tempted murder charges before 
Chief magistrate Josephat Kalo. 
He admitted to have intended to 
kill Resident Magistrate Eunice 
Kelly and Edith Adhiambo (the 
complainant) on November 22, 
2016 after attacking them with a 
screw driver in a courtroom im-
mediately his judgment was de-
livered. (Julius Chepkwony 
and Ian Ngeta)

Nairobi: Sinai fire 
victims denied Sh25 b 
compensation
n  Sinai fire victims suffered a 
blow after the court declined to 
award Sh25 billion in compensa-
tion from the government. Judge 
Edward Muriithi told Nairobi’s Si-
nai slum victims to file a proper 
suit in which each one will prove 
his individual loss. “It is unnec-
essary to decide whether the 
claimants may recover personal 
injury damages through a con-
stitutional law as there is already 
a procedure in common law and 
statute through which the mat-
ter may be conveniently and full 
resolved,” court ruled. (Faith 
Karanja)

Nairobi: Businessman 
in court over Westlands 
property demolition
n A city businessman who po-
lice linked to the demolition of 
a house worth Sh55 million in 
Westlands, Nairobi, appeared in 
court Wednesday. Francis Nya-
ga Njeru appeared before Mili-
mani Senior Resident Magistrate 
Hellen Onkwani who directed Mr 
Njeru to appear before the Na-
tional Land Commission to de-
termine ownership. (Staff)

Akasha sons face 
life in US jail if guilty

Police guard coccaine intercepted in Malindi. Some officers are accused of working 
with drug traffickers. (Standard file photo)

Michael Kuhora Njeri at  Nakuru 
Law court .

Matiang’i 
can’t sack 
UoM Vice 
Chancellor

The Labour and Industrial 
Court in Mombasa yesterday 
ordered Technical University of 
Mombasa to pay former Mom-
basa Technical University 
(TUM) Vice Chancellor Prof 
Josephat Mwatela a full year’s 
salary for illegally sacking him.

Justice Onesmus Makau fault-
ed the decision by Education 
Cabinet Secretary Fred 
Matiang’i to terminate Mwate-
la’s contract with the university.

Mwatela has been contesting 
his May 2015 sacking and sued 
the university and CS demand-
ing declaration that his dismiss-
al was illegal. Justice Makau said 
the CS lacked legal and contrac-
tual authority to fire Mwatela 
and the termination letter was 
done against the TUM Charter. 
(Joackim Bwana)

A court cleared Kiambu Coun-
ty Governor William Kabogo of 
charges of ethnic incitement.

The Friday acquittal has saved 
Mr Kabogo of a jail term of up to 
five years or a fine of Sh5 million 
had he been found guilty

The magistrate had been 
impressed upon by defence law-
yers Mansur Issa and Edward 
Oonge to discharge the governor 
for no case to answer since the 
prosecution did not put forth 
testimony showing the particu-
lar community that was affected 
by the alleged utterances.

Ms Mutuku said the prosecu-
tion did not call the maker of 
video clip that was aired by two 
TV stations on November 25, 
2015 where Mr Kabogo uttered 
the inciting statements.

In her ruling, Senior Principal 
Magistrate, Martha Mutuku, 
said the evidence presented 
before her did not establish a 
case against the governor and 
was not enough to warrant the 
court place him on his defence.

She also added that the origi-
nal raw copy of the video was 
not produced in court for pur-
poses of establishing its authen-
ticity. (Staff)

Labour Court

Law Co urt

Goverrnor 
Kabogo 
cleared of 
hate speech

Case recordings
n 

April 25, 2014: Baktash and his 
brother Ibrahim meet ‘clients’ 
and tell them they had con-
tacted a heroin supplier in Paki-
stan ready to purchase 500 kil-
ograms of heroin code-named 
“great diamond”. Baktash con-
tacts his supplier to inform 
them the heroin was destined 
for US and would cost 12,000 US 
dollars (Sh1.2 million) per kilo. 
The supplier says he had 420 ki-
los of pure heroin available. 
n May 2014: Baktash calls his 
‘client’ promising three pack-
ets of heroin from potential sup-
plier. 
n June 10, 2014: Baktash is on 
phone discussing sending sam-
ples of heroin to a country with-
in East Africa.
n June 2014: Goswami recorded 
promising to assist a Colombi-
an drug trafficking ring establish 
processing laboratories in West 
Africa and East Africa. 
n Aug. 2014: Baktash and Gos-
wami are captured on phone ex-
plaining heroin shipments are 
delayed due to religious holidays 
and rough seas.
n Sept. 15, 2014: Baktash and 
Hussein inform their ‘client’ that 
200 kilograms of heroin would 
arrive by sea.
n Oct. 9, 2014: Goswami con-
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Chinese firm to invest U.S. $1 billion in cassava in Tanzania: Tanzania has signed a $1 

billion partnership agreement with a Chinese firm to commercialise cassava farming and 
processing, raising hopes to growers who have been grappling with the challenge of 

accessing reliable markets. Tanzania and China said they created an out-grower scheme 
that will ensure sufficient production of cassava for processing.

Africa
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On Facebook: 
There is growing con-
cern about about Ethi-

opia’s economy and 
calls for EPRDF to hold a 
free and fair elections. 
#freeethiopia

Somalia. 7 killed in 
Mogadishu blasts
n  At least seven people were 
killed and 17 others injured in two 
huge suicide car bombs near 
Mogadishu international airport 
on Monday, ambulances services 
and Somali officials said.  The al-
Shabab militant group claimed 
responsibility for the attack. This 
was the second time the group 
used the tactic of back-to-back 
suicide vehicles, with the first 
meant to provoke panic and the 
second to cause maximum cas-
ualties.(AP)MP Chishimba Kambwili

In Brief

Zimbabwe. Mugabe 
rents $500K Dubai villa
n  The legal dispute over the 
botched purchase of a US$1,35 
million diamond ring between 
the First Lady Grace Mugabe 
and Lebanese businessman Ja-
mal Ahmed, has opened a can 

of worms amid revelations that 
the Mugabes are paying up to 
US$500 000 annually in rentals 
for an upmarket villa in Emirates 
Hills, Dubai. The rentals trans-
late to US$42 000 per month, 
enough to buy two houses in 
some of Harare’s high-density 
suburbs monthly. Jamal’s High 
Court affidavit filed through his 
lawyer Beatrice Mtetwa in re-
sponse to Grace’s deposition. 
Ahmed claims that the Mugabe 
family have a bank account in 
Dubai as they rent a 10-bed-
roomed villa whose address is J11 
Emirates Hill. (AFP)

Nigeria. Protest marks 
1000 days since Chibok
n  A rally in Nigeria to show sup-
port for Donald Trump as he was 
inaugurated as US president 
turned violent, injuring several 
people, police say. The event in 
the southern oil hub of Port Har-
court was organised by a group 
supporting the independence 
of the south-eastern region of 
Biafra. The group says it backs 
Mr Trump because he supports 
“self-governance”. The People 
of Biafra allege 11 people died in 
clashes with security.(AFP)

‘We appealed to his faith’ 
says Tibou Kamara, a 
former minister from 
Guinea

By Siphiwe Sibeko
Reuters

In pushing Yahya Jammeh to 
give up The Gambia’s presi-
dency, negotiators played on 
two key cards: his deep Muslim 
faith and his professedlove of 
country.

Jammeh finally quit as pres-
ident and went into exile on 
Saturday following intense lob-
bying by international powers, 
ending more than a month of 
crisis that began when he 
rejected the result of the 
December 1 election.

Tibou Kamara, a former gov-
ernment minister from Guinea, 
went early in the crisis to con-
vince Jammeh to leave after 22 
years in power in favour of 
Adama Barrow, who won the 
ballot.

He was joined last week by 
Mauritania’s President 
Mohamed Ould Abdel Aziz and 
Guinea’s President Alpha 
Conde, to win over Jammeh 
before a “last chance saloon” 
deadline.

“It was not easy, because 
against the determination of 
the international community, 
there was a fierce resolve to 

defend what he saw as law, 
truth and justice, but especial-
ly the independence and sover-
eignty of his country,” Kamara 
said in an interview with AFP. 
Kamara had approval to nego-

tiate from Jammeh’s wife, 
whose younger sister is mar-
ried to a former president of 
Guinea. Both women have 
Guinean fathers.

“We appealed to his faith,” 

Kamara said, adding that Jam-
meh himself often said that 
“everything that happens to a 
man is God’s will. This carried 
a lot of weight.”

Jammeh had long cultivated 

the image of a devout Muslim, 
often appearing with prayer 
beads in hand, and starting his 
speeches with passages from 
the Koran. During talks led by 
the Mauritanian and Guinean 

Supporters of  the peacekeeping forces deployed to The Gambia take to the streets on Monday . [Reuters]

Appeals to Jammeh’s faith 
persuaded him to leave

Ghanal. Former leader goes into exile following lobbying by world powers, ending more than a month of crisis

Gambia’s 
eccentric leader

Known for walking 
around with his trade-
mark prayer beads and a 
stick, he was one of the 
world’s most eccentric 
and ruthless leaders.

Born in May 1965, he 
came to power in 1994 
as a 29-year-old army 
lieutenant in a coun-
try portrayed in tourist 
brochures as an idyllic 
holiday destination.

He became a portly 
president who portrayed 
himself as a devout Mus-
lim with miraculous pow-
ers, such as the power to 
cure people of Aids and 
infertility. He also be-
lieved that homosexual-
ity threatens human ex-
istence.

Mr Jammeh divorced 
his first wife Tuti Faal and 
subsequently married 
two other women, though 
his official website re-
ferred only to Zineb Yahya 
Jammeh, who held the ti-
tle of First Lady.

According to The Gam-
bia’s privately owned 
Point newspaper, he mar-
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‘There is nothing wrong with cows grazing in Nairobi’:  Dr. David Nkedianye, 

ecologist and Governor of Kajado says there should be nothing wrong with cattle 
grazing in Nairobi since there is no pasture for cows due to the current drought in 

the country. He says herders should not destroy private protery and Kenya Wildlife 
Service should allow the community to graze in parks when the drought is severe.

Metropolitan
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On U-Report: 
Will the newly-appoint-
ed electoral commis-

sioners have pledged to 
be impartial and fair while 
executing their mandate?

In Brief

Crime. Gunman raids 
Nairobi supermarket, 
steals money
n  There was panic yesterday at 
Tuskys Supermarket Tom Mboya 
Street, Nairobi when a lone 
gunman raided and took away 
unknown amount of money. He 
escaped after shooting in the air, 
causing panic at the busy 
supermarket Wednesday night 
Police and witnesses said the 

gunman walked into the tills at 
the supermarket at about 7 pm 
before he confronted a cashier 
at gunpoint and later grabbed an 
unknown amount of money 
before escaping. The area is 
usually packed at that hour. He 
shot in the air as he escaped 
forcing shoppers at the busy 
mall to scamper out for their 
safety. “People ran out 
screaming as they thought there 
were more gunmen therein. The 
gunman had escaped in the 
confusion,” said Nairobi police 
boss Japheth Koome. Police and 
detectives say they are pursuing 
clues. CCTV footage captured 
during the robbery will help 
police in identifying the gunman. 
[Daniel Psirmoi]

Westlands. Man held 
in property demolition
n  A city businessman who po-
lice linked to the demolition of 
a house worth Sh55 million in 
Westlands, Nairobi, appeared in 
court Wednesday. Francis Nyaga 
Njeru appeared before Milimani 
Senior Resident Magistrate Hel-
len Onkwani under a miscellane-
ous application by the prosecu-
tion. The magistrate directed Mr 
Njeru to appear before the Na-
tional Land Commission to shed 
more light on the ownership of 
the property, which was pulled 
down Sunday. Police say the Pa-
rin Kurji family had lived on the 
quarter acre since 1972. [Fred 
Makana]

Transport. NYS to 
train matatu operators 
on discipline, safety
n  Matatu owners will explore 
how to tackle corruption in the 
public transport sector during 
their conference that opened to-
day. At the same time, Matatu 
Owners Association (MOA) has 
revealed that soon operators will 
be undergoing vigorous train-
ing conducted by the Nation-
al Youth Service in a bid to inject 
sanity into the business. This, he 
said, will not only handle the de-
railed ethics level in the industry 
but also improve on safety. Re-
ferring to the conference whose 
climax will be Wednesday with 

President Uhuru Kenyatta ex-
pected to attend; Kimutai said 
they will be making recommen-
dations on training. ”We want to 
get rid of the all nuisance by giv-
ing a long lasting solution. This 
training will entirely take care of 
this ‘bad’ image among opera-

tors,” said Kimutai He said once 
an operator is fully trained, they 
will be issued with a certificate: 
“And if he is found to have con-
travened the ethic regulations, 
he will be sent back for retrain-
ing at his own cost.” [Philip 
Mwakio]

Nigerian 
arrested 
with fake 
$860,000

Police raided a house in Kay-
ole area, Nairobi and arrested a 
Nigerian involved in printing 
fake US dollars.

More than 860,000 fake US 
dollars were recovered in the 
operation. This translates to 
Sh86 million fake papers. 

The Nigerian was taken to 
custody in the Friday raid as the 
hunt on his accomplices go on. 
Police suspect more of the fake 
papers had been supplied to the 
market. 

Elsewhere, police raided a 
house of a businessman in Kaba-
ti area, Muranga county and 
recovered Sh5 million fake mon-
ey.  

The businessman identified as 
Evans Munyua Kajogi and who 
is a licensed gun holder was also 
arrested. 

Officers from special crimes 
prevention said they were 
tipped off of the activities and 
that the man has been supplying 
the fake money to unsuspecting 
politicians. 

Unit head Noah Katumo said 
the man had tried to threaten 
the officers as they approached 
his compound before he was 
subdued. Such money is used for 
political campaigns in the coun-
try and affect the economy. 

The men are expected in court 
this Friday morning to face vari-
ous charges. [Philip Mwakio]

A car cleaner at work. The Nairobi County Government’s new rules to deny water to car washes will 
lead to a loss of more than a thousand youth jobs in Nairobi. [Jacob Otieno, Standard] 

As the water situation 
hits the city, Nairobi water 
company is taking 
extreme measures.

By Patrick Beja
name@standardmedia.ke.co

City dwellers with personal 
cars will be forced to look for 
alternative means of cleaning 
them, as the Nairobi Water 
Company has ordered the clo-
sure of car wash businesses 
around Nairobi.

The company’s managing 
director Phillip Gichuki said 
that there will be a crackdown 
on carwash businesses oper-
ating by the roadside, adding 
that they will face the full 
wrath of the law if found to be 
operational.

Earlier in the year, residents 
from Nairobi and its environs 
had been warned of a poten-
tial four-month water short-
age, as water levels from 
Ndakaini dam ran significant-
ly lower (only 46 percent full).

Car wash businesses will be 
the biggest casualties of water 
shortage, as the main water 
company in the city seeks to 
preserve more water for 

domestic use.
Corporate affairs manager 

of the Nairobi water company 
maintained the roadside car 
wash businesses would 
remain closed until the water 
situation is restored.

City coping with shorrage
The company’s managing 

director Phillip Gichuki said 
that there will be a crackdown 
on carwash businesses oper-
ating by the roadside, adding 
that they will face the full 
wrath of the law if found to be 
operational.

Mr Gichuki said the current 
short rains expected over the 
Aberdare catchment have 
been below average. 

He said that the dams only 
received about 250 mm of 
rains against the expected 
average of 1000 mm. 

“It is notable that the rainy 
reasons since 2014 to 2016, 
have been below average, 
therefore contributing to the 
decreasing levels of water 
drawn from the rivers. This 
means that the recharge of the 
rivers has been poor and cur-
rently the river flows are 
below normal,” said Gichuki.

City to lose car washes 
as water shortage bites 

Water shortage. Nairobi car washes are now being closed down to minimize on water usage
CRIME
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We must 
separate 
research and 
teaching universities
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Galana-Kulalu project harvest 
nets 103,000 bags of maize: The 

third harvest of Galana-Kulalu 
Irrigation scheme delivered 

103,000 bags of maize – 2,500 
acres delivered 93,860 bags with 
more from 250 acres undergoing 

final drying, according to Planning 
and Design Chief Engineer 

Thuita Mwangi. The harvest is 
set to double in December as 

the project will expand to 
4,000 acres, then 

10,000 acres in 

Looking out for 
the pitfalls. 
What redress does 
someone have 
when conned on 
property 
advertising 
portals? And what 
are some of the 
security 
features these 
portals have to 
protect users 
from fraudsters? 
yourself.
Page 2-3
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Will textbooks go the 
way of the future?

University, P. 7

More women getting 
engineering degrees

Your Complete Guide to Education

School &
College

Vision 2030. Kenya’s ambitious infrastructure projects have the potential to transform the country over the next few years
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$50 billion in 
megaprojects 
for Kenya

Other Kenya works

LAPSSET 
pipeline. 
Crude oil 
pipeline 
connecting oil 
fields in 
Turkana Basin 
with Uganda.

Lamu Port. 
And Lamu-
Southern 
Sudan-Ethiopia 
Transport 
Corridor $23 bil. 
project across 
three countries.

Small 
airports.
Upgrades to 
smaller airports 
such as Isiolo 
(left) are 
planned.

Two Rivers 
Mall. 
East Africa’s 
largest mall will 
open in Nairobi 
with housing, 
hotels, offices 
and shopping. 

Konza Tech 
City. 
Or “Silicon 
Savannah”  is 
hoped to be a 
world-class 
hub of entre-
preneurship.

Highways. 
Hundreds of 
kilometers of 
new road laid to 
facilitate 
transport of 
goods and 
people.

Resort 
cities. 
Three resort 
cities con-
structed in 
Lamu, Isiolo 
and Lokichogio.  

Energy. 
New plants 
such as 
Ol-Karia (left) 
aims to serve 
one-quarter of 
the country’s 
energy needs. 

Passenger  
train: The Mombasa-
Nairobi SGR is the biggest project since 
independence. It will shorten travel from 
Mombasa to Nairobi from ten hours to a 
little more than four hours. 

Railway 
Stations.
State-of-the-
art new 
passenger 
stations at 
Nairobi, Voi, 
and Mombasa.  

JKIA. 
Kenya’s airport 
is to receive 
multiple 
upgrades, 
including new 
terminal and 
runway.

Standard 
Gauge 
Railway. 
Project that 
replaces the 
tracks left by 
the British 
regime.

Mombasa 
Rail                    
Station.
Construction of 
state-of-art 
passenger 
railway station.

Freight train: The freight 
terminals will be located at the 
Mombasa port and the Inland Container 
Depots at Embakasi in Nairobi. The 
railway line is designed to carry 22 
million tonnes a year of cargo or a 
projected 40% of Mombasa Port S Read more about 

this story at 
standard.co.ke

Whats newOur produccts
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4.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES                                                                                                                                              
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, Euro,and GBP. Foreign 
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Group and Company

	 USD	E URO	 GBP	T OTAL

2016:	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Financial assets

Cash at bank	 618	 (      279)	 5,124	      5,463

Financial liabilities

Trade payables	 (33,968)	 (10,496)	 (1,057)	 (45,521)

Net foreign

currency liability	 (33,350)	 (10,775)	 4,067	 (40,058)

2015:

Financial assets

Cash at bank	 (   4,438)	     6,015	 -	       1,577

Financial liabilities

Trade payables	 (28,896)	 (18,878)	 (15,026)	 (62,800)

Net foreign

currency liability	 (33,334)	 (12,863)	 (15,026)	 (61,223)

At 31 December 2016, if the Shilling had weakened/strengthened by 1% against the foreign currencies with all other variables held constant, the 
impact on profit before taxation for the year would have been KShs 400,580 (2015 - KShs 612,230).
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The following significant exchange rates have been applied during the 
year:

                  	  Average		C losing

	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015

USD	 101.5	 98.5	 102.3	 102.2

EURO	 113.0	 109.0 	 107.1	 111.8

GBP	 138.9	 150.7     	 125.4 	 151.7

(ii)	Price risk

The Group does not hold financial instruments that would be subject to 
price risk.

(iii)Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group has borrowings in the form of overdraft facilities and 5 year 
term loans with two banks namely Commercial Bank of Africa Limited  
and Stanbic Bank Limited with a combined overdraft limit of KShs 405 
million (2015 - KShs 350 million) at rates determined by prevailing market 
conditions.  

As at 31 December 2016, an increase/decrease of 1% on average 
borrowing rates would have resulted in an increase/decrease in profit 
before taxation for Group and Company by KShs 1,206,213 (2015 - KShs 
1,632,000).

(b)Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group-wide basis. Credit risk arises from 
trade receivables. The credit committee assesses the credit quality of each 
customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and 
other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external 
ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The utilisation of credit 
limits is regularly monitored.
The amount that best represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit 
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risk as at 31 December 2016 is made up as follows:

Group	F ully			 
	 performing	 Past due	I mpaired	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Receivables

Advertising	   660,337	   330,843	 260,172	 1,251,352

Circulation	      39,462	      11,374	   70,815	     121,651

Trade debtors

Baraza Limited	      307,626	  105,653	   82,091	    495,370

	 1,007,425	 447,870	 413,078	 1,868,373

Company				  

Advertising	 646,237	 330,843	 260,172	 1,237,252

Circulation	     39,412	     11,374	    70,815	    121,601

	 685,649	 342,217	 330,987	 1,358,853

The amount that best represented the Group’s maximum exposure to 
credit risk as at 31 December 2015 was made up as follows:

Group	F ully			 
	 performing	 Past due	I mpaired	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Receivables

Advertising	 726,050	 245,090	 263,515	 1,234,655

Circulation	    33,200	    32,719	 181,873	   247,792

Trade debtors
Baraza Limited	 219,883	   96,498	   80,559	    396,940

	 979,133	 374,307	 525,947	 1,879,387
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 
AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

Group	F ully			 

	 performing	 Past due	I mpaired	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Company				  

Advertising	 737,519	 245,090	 263,515	 1,246,124

Circulation	   33,200	   32,719	 181,873	    247,792

	 770,719	 277,809	 445,388	 1,493,916

The analysis above is based on the ageing below:

Circulation
Fully performing	 0-60 days
Past due	 61-90 days
Impaired	 Over 91 days

Advertising
Fully performing	 0-90 days
Past due	 91-180 days
Impaired	 Over 181 days

Baraza Limited
Fully performing	 0-90 days
Past due   	 91-120 days
Impaired	 Over 121 days

The movement in the provision for impaired receivables during the year 
was as below:

	 2016	 2015
Group:	 KShs ‘000	 KShs ‘000

Balance brought forward	 525,947	 251,333

Charge for the year 	 281,535	 372,537

Bad debt write offs and credit notes	 (228,989)	 (19,590)

Bad debts recoveries 	 (165,415)	 (78,333)

Balance carried forward	 413,078	 525,947
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

	 2016	 2015
Company:	 KShs ‘000	 KShs ‘000

Balance brought forward	 445,388	 209,006

Charge for the year	 224,828	 316,855

Bad debt write offs and credit notes	 (194,258)	 (  19,365)

Bad debts recoveries	 (144,971)	 (  61,108)

Balance carried forward	 330,987	 445,388

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue trading. The default rate is low.

The debt that is overdue is not impaired and continues to be paid. The credit control department is actively following this debt.  In addition, the Group 
has bank guarantees of KShs 99 million as at December 2016 (2015 – KShs 99 million), which can be enforced in the event of customer default.  
Further, for Circulation, the debt is partially covered by cumulative cash deposits by Vendors and Agents.

The debt that is impaired has been fully provided for.  However, debt collectors as well as the legal department are following up on the impaired debt.

Other financial instruments for which the Group and company is exposed to credit risk are as follows:

Group:	 2016	 2015
	  KShs ‘000	 KShs ‘000

Bank and cash balances	 31,901	 34,453

Other receivables (Note 22)	 317,013	 136,038

	 348,914  	     170,941
Company

Bank and cash balances	 28,066	 34,253

Other receivables (Note 22)	 303,611	 100,741

	 331,677	 134,994

There was no significant credit risk exposure on bank and cash balances and other receivables.
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4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash to meet Group obligations.  The treasury function reviews the cash forecast 
monthly and determines the cash requirement.  Cash generated from operations is healthy but if a heavy cash requirement is necessary there exists 
overdraft facilities with Commercial Bank of Africa Limited and Stanbic Bank Limited with a combined limit of KShs 405  million (2015 – KShs 350 
million).

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table below are the contractual undiscounted 
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant.

		B  etween 	B etween
	L ess than	 1 – 3	 3 – 12	  Over
Group	 1 month	 months	 months	 1 year	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 31 December 2016

Borrowings – Shareholder loans	 -	 -	 88,588	 -	 88,588 

Borrowings – Bank borrowings   	 17,192 	 75,636	 418,228	 553,781	 1,064,837

Hire purchase loans                     	 1,069	 3,290	  2,736	 -	 7,095

Overdraft facility	 332,063	 -	 -	 -	 332,063

Trade and other payables	 164,602	 573,313	 49,121	 -	 787,036
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

	B etween 	B etween
	L ess than	 1 – 3	 3 – 12	  Over
	 1 month	 months	 months	 1 year	T otal

Group	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 31 December 2015

Borrowings – Shareholder loans	  - 	 -	 105,991	 -	 105,991

Borrowings – Bank borrowings   	  21,984	 76,228	 501,319	 716,957	 1,316,488

Hire purchase loans	 2,171	 4,228	 11,125	 7,210	 24,734

Overdraft facility	 484,855	 -	 -	 -	 484,855

Dividends	 25,392	 -	 -	 -	 25,392

Trade and other payables	 112,654	 511,245	 18,213	 -	 642,112

Company

At 31 December 2016

Borrowings – Related parties loans	 -	 -	 99,180	 -	 99,180

Borrowings – Bank borrowings	 17,192 	 76,636	 418,225	 553,781	 1,065,834

Hire purchase loans	  1,069	 3,290	 2,736	 -	 7,095 

Overdraft facility	 314,040	 -	 -	 -	 314,040

Trade and other payables	 137,750	 383,836	 40,935	 -	 562,521

At 31 December 2015

Borrowings – Related parties loans	 -	 -	 116,584	 -	     116,584

Borrowings – Bank borrowings	    21,984	   76,228	 501,319	 716,957	 1,316,488

Hire purchase loans	       2,171	     4,228	    11,125	      7,210	       24,734           

Overdraft facility	 469,897	 -	 -	 -	 469,897

Trade and other payables	    79,666	 454,391	    15,292	 -	 549,349



 Level 1  Level 2 Level 3

Types of 
financial 
liabilities:

Listed derivative 
instruments

Over-the-counter 
(OTC) derivatives

Highly structured 
OTC derivatives 
with unobservable 
parameters

The table above shows the classification of financial assets, financial liabilities and 
non-financial assets held at fair value into the valuation hierarchy set out below as at 31 
December 2015 and 2016

(d) Fair values

i. Valuation hierarchy

The valuation hierarchy, and types of instruments classified into each level within that 
hierarchy, is set out below:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Fair value 
determined 
using:

Unadjusted quoted 
prices in an active 
market for identical 
assets and liabilities

Valuation models 
with directly or 
indirectly market 
observable inputs

Valuation models 
using significant 
non-market 
observable inputs

Types of 
financial 
assets:

Actively traded 
government and other 
agency securities
Listed derivative 
instruments

Listed equities

Corporate and other 
government bonds 
and loans

Over-the-counter 
(OTC) derivatives

Corporate bonds in 
illiquid markets

Highly structured 
OTC derivatives 
with unobservable 
parameters
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ii. Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities. 

Group
2016	 Other	L oans and	T otal	
	 liabilities	 receivables	 carrying				  
value	 value
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Financial assets				  

Trade and other receivables	                 - 	 1,812,340	 1,812,340	 1,812,340

Cash and bank balances	                 - 	      31,901	       31,901	       31,901
				  
	                 -	 1,844,241	 1,844,241	 1,844,241

Financial liabilities				  

Amounts due to related parties	       88,588	                - 	 88,588	 88,588

Borrowings	 1,209,849	                -	 1,209,849	 1,182,750

Trade and other payables	    845,454	                - 	 845,454	 845,454

	 2,143,891		  2,143,891	 2,116,792
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4.    FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Fair values (continued)

ii. Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

	 Other	L oans and	T otal	
	 liabilities	 receivables	 carrying 	F air
			   value	 value
2015	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
				  
Financial assets				  

Trade and other receivables	  - 	 1,502,434	 1,502,434	 1,502,434

Cash and bank balances	  - 	        34,453	       34,453	        34,453
				  
	  - 	 1,536,887	 1,536,887	 1,536,887
Financial liabilities				  

Amounts due to related parties	     105,991	  - 	     105,991	     105,991

Borrowings	 1,486,950	 -	 1,486,950	 1,439,947

Trade and other payables	     677,563	  - 	      677,563	     677,563

	 2,270,504	 -	 2,270,504	 2,223,501

Company
2016	 Other	L oans and	T otal	
	 liabilities	 receivables	 carrying 	F air
			   value	 value
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Financial assets				  

Amounts due from related parties	  - 	 174,608	 174,608	 174,608

Trade and other receivables	  - 	 1,366,873	 1,366,873	 1,366,873

Cash and bank balances	  - 	 28,066	 28,066	 28,066

	 -	 1,569,547	 1,569,547	 1,569,547

Financial liabilities				  

Amounts due to related parties	 99,180	  - 	 99,180	 99,180

Borrowings	 1,191,826	 -	 1,191,826	 1,164,727

Trade and other payables	 652,797	  - 	 652,797	 652,797

	 1,943,803		  1,943,803	 1,916,704
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)		

(d) Fair values (continued)

ii. Fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

	 Other	L oans and	T otal	
	 liabilities	 receivables	 carrying 	F air
			   value	 value
2015	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Financial assets				  

Amounts due from related parties	  - 	 255,562	 255,562	 255,562

Trade and other receivables	  - 	 1,161,356	 1,161,356	 1,161,356

Cash and bank balances	  - 	     34,253	     34,253	     34,253

	  - 	 1,451,171	 1,451,171	 1,451,171
Financial liabilities				  

Amounts due to related parties	 116,587	  - 	 116,587	 116,587

Borrowings	 1,471,992	 -	 1,471,992	 1,424,989

Trade and other payables	 572,498	  - 	 572,498	 572,498

	 2,161,077	 -	 2,161,077	 2,114,074

The Group and the Company have not disclosed the fair values for the financial instruments such as cash and bank balances, short term trade re-
ceivables amounts and trade payables because they are a reasonable approximation of the fair values.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and 
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. These are dealt with below:

Property, plant and equipment
The company tests annually whether the useful lives and residual values are appropriate and in accordance with its accounting policy. Useful lives 
and residual values of property, plant and equipment have been determined based on previous experience and anticipated disposal values when 
the assets are disposed.

Impairment
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have 
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of 
the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

 
5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
Contingent liabilities
As disclosed in Note 38 to these financial statements, the Group is exposed to various contingent liabilities in the normal course of business including 
a number of legal cases. 

The Directors evaluate the status of these exposures on a regular basis to assess the probability of the Group incurring related liabilities. However, 
provisions are only made in the financial statements where, based on the Directors’ evaluation, a present obligation has been established.

Taxation 
Judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes due to the complexity of legislation. There are many transactions and calcula-
tions for which ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Company recognises liabilities for anticipated tax 
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts 
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.
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6.SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

Information reported to the operating segment decision makers for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is 
focused on the means of delivery of the good or service to the customer. The goods and services are delivered through publishing and broadcasting. 
The Group’s reportable segments under IFRS 8 are publishing, television and radio.

(b) Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for continuing operations by reportable segment. The segment assets and liabilities 
exclude current and deferred tax assets and liabilities:

	                                                                2016                                                        	                                                                     2015                                                                                    
	 Publishing	T elevision	R adio	E limination	T otal	 Publishing	T elevision	R adio	  Elimination	T otal 
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	  KShs’000 

External sales	 3,398,811	 1,099,464	 317,052		  4,815,327	 3,442,726	 739,523	 306,150	                    -	 4,488,399

Other gains and losses	 90,693	 8,225	             -	                  -	 98,918	 (     29,700)	 3,587	               -	                    -	 (     26,113)

Expenses	 (3,191,512)	 (1,035,676)	 (183,863)	                  -	 (4,411,051)	 (3,645,647)	 (881,928)	 (166,875)	                    -	 (4,694,449)

Finance costs 	 (   211,872)	 (       2,977)	 (  18,870)	                  -	 (   233,719)	 (   161,618)	 (     2020)	            -	                    -	 (   163,638)

Segment profit/(loss)

before taxation	 86,120	 69,036	 114,319	                   -	 269,475	 (   394,238)	 (140,838)	 139,275	                    -	 (   395,801)

Income tax 

(expense)/credit	 (15,027)	 (     21,632)	 (  34,295)	                 -	 (     70,954)	       64,750	    41,448	            -	             -	    106,198

Profit/(loss) 

after taxation	        71,093	         47,404	      80,024	                   -	      198,521	 (   329,488)	 (   99,390)	 139,275	             -	 (  289,603)

  
(c) Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets	 3,373,960	       759,032	 414,702	 (185,200)	 4,362,494	 3,884,907	 678,508	     98,898	 (384,063)	 4,278,250

Segment liabilities	 1,675,210	       393,181	 282,445	 (185,200)	 2,165,636	 2,238,836	 381,534	     50,572	 (384,063)	 2,286,879

Capital expenditure	 165,910	      34,701	 2,645	                -	    203,256	    459,840	     2,172	     2,976	             -           	    464,988

Depreciation and  

amortisation expense	       333,618	        57,996	    29,432	                -	    421,028	    280,409	     81,825	     18,429	                        -	      380,663
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Watch us on DStv 274, GOtv 94, Zuku 14, BAMBA TV and all free to air set top boxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE                                                                                  
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

7. REVENUE	
	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	   KShs’000

Newspaper advertising	 2,103,963	 2,057,713
Television advertising	 1,099,464	 739,523
Newspaper circulation	 1,015,444	 1,143,546
Radio advertising	 317,299	 306,150
Digital advertising	 196,583	 175,677
Outdoor advertising	 82,574	 65,790

	 4,815,327	 4,488,399

8. DIRECT COSTS
Material cost	 510,062	 555,978
Programmes	 212,492	 177,901
Depreciation	 177,357	 124,198
News contribution costs	 103,524	 90,935
Advertising commission	 93,968	 25,343
News service	 61,022	 37,905
Operating lease	 60,173	 47,577
TV licenses 	 52,595	 49,438
Maintenance	 39,042	 50,228
Production salaries	 13,748	 3,773
Billboard costs	 6,592	 6,163
Magazine purchases	 -	 31,885
Others 	 1,541	 1,729

	 1,332,116	 1,203,053

9.OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)
Miscellaneous income	 41,311	 31,939
Sale of returns, production waste
 and other income	 33,940	 23,139
Printing services	 17,956	 3,140
Gain on disposal of property 
and equipment	 6,714	 12,894
Net foreign exchange loss	 364	 (13,088) 
Leasing fees	 -	 1,557
Loss on impaired assets	 (1,367)	 (85,694)

	  98,918	 (26,113)

10.SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION
Commission	 274,911	 330,094
Marketing and promotion	 107,555	 82,331
Transport and distribution costs	 86,875	 106,193
Packing materials	 3,464	 2,590

	 472,805	  521,208
 
11.ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Staff costs	 1,384,161	 1,567,405
Rent and office expenses	 217,337	 139,224
Depreciation charge	 127,826	 158,985
Amortisation	 109,863	 97,119
Professional fees	 107,583	 189,054
Impairment losses	 105,966	 286,582
Repairs and maintenance	 89,081	 93,863
Vehicle running and hire	 74,619	 72,320
Telephone and postages	 64,820	 52,767
Travel and accommodation	 63,539	 49,773
General insurance	 57,446	 34,806
Licences	 56,703	 54,097
Bank charges	 35,771	 32,304
Electricity and water	 28,907	 47,605
Training	 18,412	 19,316
Subscription and donation	 17,865	 12,744
Printing and stationery	 14,358	 19,639
Directors’ fees	 10,150	 7,954
AGM and board meeting costs	 4,263	 5,636
Entertainment	 8,768	 15,529
Others	 5,918	 10,230
Mileage	 2,774	 3,236

	 2,606,130	 2,970,188
Staff costs include:
Salaries and wages	 1,136,841	 1,294,002
Staff welfare	 183,856	 213,045
Pension contributions	 60,767	 55,970
Others	 2,697	 4,388	   

	 1,384,161 	  1,567,405
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12. FINANCE COSTS 
Interest on term loans	 158,457	 112,135
Interest on overdrafts	 68,742	 39,435
Interest on shareholder loans	 5,190	 5,190
Interest on hire purchase loans	 1,330	 6,878

	 233,719	 163,638

13. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Depreciation	  311,101	 283,184

Amortisation - intangible assets	 108,294	    95,486

- prepaid operating lease rentals	       1,633	        1,633

Directors’ emoluments:

- Fees - non-executive	   10,150	       8,496

- Other emoluments – executive 	   59,932	    64,633

Auditors’ remuneration  - current year	     5,088	       4,659

Gain on disposal of plant and equipment	   (6,714)   	   (12,894)

Loss on impaired assets	      1,367	    85,964
 
14.DIVIDEND PER SHARE

  		   2016	 2015
Group and Company		  KShs ‘000	 KShs ‘000

Dividends – Ordinary shares	  -                         	  -                     

Proposed dividends are accounted for as a separate component of 
equity until they have been ratified at an Annual General Meeting.

A total of KShs 25,392,000 dividends payable for 2014 was fully repaid 
in the course of the year 2016.

Payment of dividends is subject to withholding tax at the rate of 5% for 
residents and 10% for non-resident shareholders. 
	

15. TAXATION
Group	
(a)Taxation expense/(credit) 	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Current taxation charge	 68,909	 46,578
Over provision of current tax in prior year	 (4,152)	              -

Current tax	 64,757	 46,578

Deferred tax in respect of the current year	 11,197	 (154,864)
Adjustments recognised in the current year 
in relation to the deferred tax of prior year	 (5,000)	       2,088
(Note 27)

Deferred tax	 6,197	 (152,776)

Total income tax expense/(credit)
 recognised in the current year	 70,954	 (106,198)

(b)Reconciliation of expected tax based on
accounting profit/(loss) to taxation expense

Profit/(loss) before taxation	 269,475	 (395,801)

Tax at the applicable rate of 30%	 80,843   	 (118,740)
Tax effect of non-deductible costs	    3,142	     10,454
Income not subject to tax	 ( 3,879)	                 -
Prior year (over)/under provision of 
deferred tax	  (5,000)	       2,088
Over provision of current tax in prior year	  (4,152)	                   

	 70,954	 (106,198)
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15. TAXATION (Continued)
(c) Taxation payable/(recoverable)

Group
	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At beginning of the year	 (20,418)	   10,260

Current tax - charge for the year	   64,757	  46,578

Tax paid in the year	 (33,361)	 (77,256)

At 31 December	 10,978	 (20,418)

Comprising: 

Tax payable	  17,861	 -

Tax recoverable	 (6,883)	 (20,418)

	 10,978	 (20,418)

Company

At beginning of the year	 (13,694)	 16,984

Current tax	 - charge for the year	  64,757	 46,578

	 - tax paid in the year	 (33,202)	 (77,256)

At 31 December	 17,861	 (13,694)

Comprising:

Tax payable	 17,861	                  -

Tax recoverable	            -	 (13,694) 

	 17,861	 (13,694)

16.BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

	 2016	 2015

Profit/(loss) attributable to owners 

of the Company – KShs’000	 175,293	 (  240,903)

Number of shares during the year	 81,730,854	 81,730,854

Basic earnings per share – KShs	 2.14	 (2.95)
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
				    Furniture	C apital
(a) Group		  Plant &	M otor	 fittings &	 work in
2016:	B uildings	 machinery	 vehicles	 equipment	 progress	T otal
Cost	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 1 January 2016	 676,674	 2,142,355	 168,409	 541,789	 152,406	 3,681,633
Additions	 -	 43,635	 22,785	 30,837	 80,871   	 178,128
Disposals	 -	 -	 (   3,450)	  -	 (7,157) 	 (10,607)
Write off	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (1,367)   	 ( 1,367)
Transfers from WIP	 -	 143,575	 -	 -	 (143,575)	 -	
Transfer to intangible 	
asset	 -	  -	  -	  -	 (  41,151) 	 ( 41,151)

At 31 December 2016	   676,674 	 2,329,565	 187,744	 572,626  	  40,027 	 3,806,636

Depreciation
At 1 January 2016	 65,724	 950,370	 154,189	 481,916	 -	 1,652,199
Charge for the year	 13,636	 227,845	 9,259	 60,361	  	 311,101
Eliminated on disposal               	 -	                    -	  (   3,450)	  -	   -	  ( 3,450)

At 31 December 2016	     79,360    	 1,178,215   	 159,998	 542,277	 -	 1,959,850

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2016	     597,314   	 1,151,350 	 27,746      	 30,349	 40,027	 1,846,786

2015:
Cost
At 1 January 2015	 664,646	 2,178,969	 182,072	 491,622	 168,402	 3,685,711
Additions	 1,103        	  43,154	 10,013	  54,045	 348,019	 456,334
Disposals	   -	 -	 (  23,676)	 (3,878)	 -	 (27,554)
Write off	 -	 (79,768)	 -	    -	 (28,116)	 (107,884)     
Transfers from WIP	 10,925	 -	 -	   -	 (10,925)	 -
Transfers to intangible 
assets	             -	 -	       -	 -	 (324,974)	 (324,974)

At 31 December 2015	 676,674	 2,142,355	 168,409	 541,789	 152,406	 3,681,633

Depreciation
At 1 January 2015	   52,221	 857,173	 164,337	 345,028	 -	 1,418,759
Charge for the year	  13,503	 115,387	 13,528	 140,766	 -	 283,184
Eliminated on write off	 -	 ( 22,190)	 -	 -	 -	 (22,190)
Eliminated on disposal	 -	 - 	 ( 23,676)	 (    3,878)	 -	 (27,554)

At 31 December 2015	   65,724	 950,370	 154,189	 481,916	 -	 1,652,199

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015	 610,950	 1,191,985	 14,220	 59,873	 152,406	 2,029,434

At 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment with cost of KShs 855,194,175 (2015 – KShs 476,174,510) were fully depreciated.  The notional 
depreciation charge on these assets would have been KShs 195,200,495,(2015 – KShs 114,817,196). 
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17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
(b) Company				    Furniture	C apital
		  Plant &	M otor	 fittings &	 work in
2016:	B uildings	 machinery	 vehicles	 equipment	 progress	T otal
Cost	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
Cost
At January 2016	 596,069	 1,502,653	 168,803	 462,404	 151,724	 2,881,653
Additions	  -	 9,597	 22,785     	 30,174  	  80,871	      143,427
Write offs                               	 -	 -	 -	 -	 (1,044)	  ( 1,044)
Disposals                    	 -	  -	 (3,450)	 -	  ( 7,157)	  ( 10,607)
Transfers from WIP	 -	 143,575	 -	 -	 (143,575)	 -
Transfer to intangible 	
assets	  -	 -	                 -	 -	 (  41,151) 	 (41,151)   

At 31 December 2016	 596,069	 1,655,825      188,138     	 492,578    	 39,668	   2,972,278

Depreciation
At January 2016	 64,739 	 616,836	 153,069	 340,110	 -	 1,174,754
Charge for the year	 12,024	 174,594	      9,259	 57,228	  -	 253,105
Eliminated on disposals	 -  	 -	 (3,450)	 -	  -	 (3,450)

At 31 December 2016   	 76,763         	 791,430	 158,878	 397,338	 -	 1,424,409

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2016	 519,306       	  864,395	 29,260	 95,240	 39,668	 1,547,869

2015:
Cost
At January 2015	 584,041	 1,539,267	 182,466	 414,409	 167,720	 2,887,903

Additions	  1,103      	 43,154       	 10,013	 51,873	 348,019	 454,162
Write offs                        	 -	 (79,768)	  -	  -	 (  28,116) 	 (107,884)
Disposals                    	 -	  -	 (23,676)	 (3,878)	 - 	 ( 27,554)
Transfers from WIP	 10,925	 -	 -	 -	 (  10,925)	 -
Transfer to intangible 
assets	   -	 -	 -	 -	  (324,974)	 (  324,974)

At 31 December 2015	 596,069	 1,502,653	 168,803	 462,404	 151,724	 2,881,653

Depreciation
At January 2015	 52,848 	 523,638	 163,217	 283,435	 -	 1,023,138
Charge for the year	 11,891	 115,388	 13,528	 60,553	 -	     201,360
Eliminated on write offs	 -	 ( 22,190)	 -	 -	 -	 (    22,190)
Eliminated on disposals	 -	 -	 (  23,676)	 ( 3,878)	 -	 (    27,554)

At 31 December 2015   	   64,739 	 616,836	 153,069	 340,110	 -	 1,174,754

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2015	  531,330	 885,817	 15,734	 122,294	 151,724  	 1,706,899

At 31 December 2016, property, plant and equipment with cost of KShs 534,309,732 (2015 – KShs 341,882,118) were fully depreciated. The notional 
depreciation charge on these assets would have been KShs 148,782,943. (2015 – KShs 97,769,475). 	
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18. PREPAID OPERATING LEASE RENTALS 
	
	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	  KShs’000

Group and Company
Cost
At 1 January 	 128,000	 128,000
Additions during the year 	                -	                 -
	
At 31 December	 128,000	 128,000

Amortisation

At 1 January	    10,709	      9,076
Charge for the year	       1,633	       1,633

At 31 December	     12,342	      10,709

Carrying amount	
At 31 December	 115,658	 117,291

The prepaid operating lease relates to leasehold land where The Standard Group Centre is located.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS	                     			                                                                        

(a) Group	 		B  roadcasting  	T otal	T otal
	T rademarks	S oftware	L icenses	 2016	 2015
	  KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	  KShs’000
Cost					   

At 1 January 	 6,000	 495,255	 117,655	 618,910	 285,283
Additions                           	            -	 25,128	              -	 25,128	 8,653
Transfer from property,                                      			     
plant and equipment                  	           -	 26,651	 14,500	 41,151	 324,974

At 31 December       	 6,000        	 547,034	 132,155	 685,189	 618,910	

Amortisation

At 1 January	         -	 171,413	            -	 171,413	 75,927
Charge for the year     	         -	 108,294	            - 	 108,294	 95,486

At 31 December          	         -	 279,707	            -	 279,707	 171,413
Carrying amount

At 31 December         	  6,000      	 267,327	 132,155	 405,482	 447,497
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)
The Group acquired the rights to distribute the Eve trademark on 17 April 2009. An agreement was signed transferring full title 
and guaranteeing all rights, titles and interest in the publication to the Group. 

The Group acquired licenses for radio frequencies through its subsidiary, Toads Media Group Limited and additional 
frequencies acquired directly by the parent. The Group made reference to the cash generating ability of Radio Maisha and 
projected consistent revenue growth for the foreseeable future and assessed these as not impaired.

At the end of the year, the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of both its investments in trademarks and the frequency 
for impairment. The Group used reference to their cash generating ability and assessed them as not impaired. For the Eve 
trademark, the assumption made was that the publication (Eve Woman) will continue to accrue commercial benefits in the 
foreseeable future. No impairment losses have therefore been recognized in these financial statements.

20. INVESTMENTS

Investment in subsidiaries	 Principal	S hareholding	 2016	 2015
(unquoted)	 activity 	       %	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

The Standard Limited	 Dormant	 100%	   3,398	    3,398
Baraza Limited	 Broadcasting	    51%	          92	          92
Agency Sales and Promotion Limited	 Dormant	 100%	             2	             2
Toads Media Group Limited 	 Leasing	 100% 	 66,875	 66,875

			   70,367	 70,367
                                                                                                                                          
The investments in the subsidiaries are carried at cost. Toads Media Group Limited holds the licence for the frequencies for 
Radio Maisha, which operates as a division of The Standard Group Limited. 

(b)Company

Cost
At 1 January 	 6,000	 495,255	 50,780	 552,035	 218,408
Additions                       	            -	 25,128	             -	 25,128	 8,653  
Transfer from property                         
plant and equipment     	            -	 26,651	 14,500	 41,151	 324,974

At 31 December                	 6,000	 547,034	 65,280	 618,314	 552,035

Amortisation

At 1 January	          -	 171,412	             -	 171,412	 75,927
Charge for the year     	          -	 108,295  	             -	 108,295	 95,485

At 31 December          	          -	 279,707	             -	 279,707	 171,412

Carrying amount	       
At 31 December               	 6,000	 267,327	 65,280	 338,607	 380,623
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21. INVENTORIES

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000 	   KShs‘000
(a) Group

Raw materials	 40,016	 49,502
Consumables  	 101,876	 85,924
Broadcast programmes	     8,675	 11,715  

	 150,567	 147,141

Inventories expensed during the year amounted to KShs 678,603,500 
(2015 - KShs 752,502,000).

	 2016	 2015
(b) Company 	 KShs’000 	 KShs‘000

Raw materials	  40,016	   49,502
Consumables	   99,737	   82,945   

	 139,753	 132,447

Inventories expensed during the year amounted to KShs 538,883,000 
(2015 - KShs 613,298,000).

22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

	 2016	 2015
(a) Group	 KShs’000 	   KShs‘000

Trade receivables	 1,868,373	 1,879,387
Impairment losses	 (  413,078)	 (525,947)

	 1,455,295	 1,353,440

Other receivables	      317,013	     136,038
Prepayments	       40,032	        12,956

	 1,812,340	 1,502,434
(b) Company

Trade receivables	 1,358,853	 1,493,916
Impairment losses	 ( 330,987)	 ( 445,388)

	 1,027,866	 1,048,528

Other receivables	    303,611	     100,741
Prepayments	       35,396	        12,087

	 1,366,873	 1,161,356

23.SHARE CAPITAL
(a) Ordinary shares

Authorised:
103,979,600 ordinary shares of KShs 5 each	 519,898	 519,898

Issued and fully paid:
81,730,854 Ordinary shares of KShs 5 each	 408,654	 408,654

(b) Share premium

Share premium comprises:
Ordinary shares at 31 December	       39,380	      39,380

(c) Movement in fully paid ordinary shares

		        Share 	   Share
	N o. of	 capital	 premium	T otal
	 shares	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 31 December 2016	 81,730,854	 408,654	 39,380	 448,034

At 31 December 2015	 81,730,854	 408,654	 39,380	 448,034

There was no increase in share capital during the year.

24. RESERVES
(a) Capital redemption reserve

In accordance with Section 60 (1) of the Kenyan Companies Act, the 
redemption of the preference share capital was made through a 
transfer to a capital redemption reserve fund. 
		
(b) Retained earnings

Retained earnings represent accumulated profits retained by the Group 
after payment of dividends to the shareholders.
	
25.NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

	 2016	           2015
 	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 1 January	 176,716	 225,416
Share of results for the year	   23,228	 ( 48,700)

At 31 December	 199,944	 176,716

Set out below are the summarised financial information for Baraza 
Limited for which the non-controlling interest is material to the group.
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Summarised financial information on subsidiary with material non- controlling interest

The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup 
eliminations.

Baraza Limited
As at 31 December		  2016	 2015
		  KShs ‘000	 KShs‘000
		
Non-controlling interest		          49%	         49%
Assets		    801,230	   742,178
Liabilities		  (393,182)	 (381,534) 

Net assets		  408,078	  360,644 

Net assets attributable to NCI		  199,958	    176,716

Revenue		  1,099,464	   739,523 
Expenses		  ( 407,891)	 (283,606) 	

Profit/(loss) for the year	    	     47,404	  ( 99,390) 

Total comprehensive income		      47,404	 (  99,390)
Total comprehensive income attributable
to non-controlling interest	 	    23,228	 (  48,701)  

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities	     35,271	 ( 20,763) 
Net cash outflow from investing activities	 (  34,701)	 (     2,173) 

Net cash inflow/(outflow)		            570	 ( 22,936)  

26. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
(a)Due from related companies

	 Group		C  ompany
	 2016	 2015	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Baraza Limited	                      -     	                       -	       174,608	      255,562

The amounts due from the Group companies are fully performing and are recoverable 
within the next 12 months.
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(b) Due to related parties

Balances due to related parties are repayable as follows:

	 2016	 2015
Group	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Within 1 year	 88,588	 105,991
Between 2 and 5 years	              -	                -

	 88,588	 105,991
Company

Within 1 year	 99,180	 116,587
Between 2 and 5 years	              -	                -

	 99,180	 116,587

             	E ffective
	 interest rate	 2016	 2015
Group	        %	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

(i) Loans

The Standard Media Group Holdings

Limited (common shareholding)	     -	 14,887	 36,703

Trade World (K) Limited (shareholders)	 8.0	 25,342	 23,819

Miller Trustees (shareholders)	 8.0	 48,359	   45,469
		  88,588	 105,991
Company

Standard Media Group Holdings Limited	      -	 14,887	 36,703

Trade World (K) Limited	 8.0	 25,342	 23,825

Miller Trustees Limited	 8.0	 48,361	 45,469

The Standard Limited	     -	 10,590	   10,590

		  99,180	 116,587

The balances due to related parties are due within the next twelve months in the current financial year.

The balances due to related parties are all denominated in Kenya shillings.

The loan from The Standard Media Group Holdings Limited is repayable within the next one year and is interest free. The loans from Miller Trustees 
Limited and Trade World (K) Limited are repayable within the next one year and attract interest at a rate of 8%. All loans are unsecured. The loan 
from The Standard Limited is unsecured and is due within the next twelve months.

The Group has transactions with shareholders and companies in which directors of The Standard Group Limited are also directors (Note 34).
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27.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ASSET
(a) Group

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
Movement on the deferred tax liability is as follows:	
	
At 1 January	 160,775	 272,104	
Deferred tax credit in respect of the current year	  (10,435)	 (113,417)
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to 
the deferred tax of prior year (Note 15(a))	 (   5,000)	     2,088

At 31 December	 145,340	 160,775

The make up of deferred tax liability is disclosed in Note 27(b).

The net deferred tax asset is attributable to the following 
items;

Accelerated capital allowances	   43,633	    53,757
Leave pay provision	 (      1,132)	 (       876)
Gratuity provision	 (     2,367)	 (     1,784) 
Unrealised exchange loss	               10	                -
Doubtful debts provision	 ( 34,605)	 ( 24,168)
Tax losses	 ( 40,853)	 ( 83,875)

At 31 December	 ( 35,314)	 ( 56,946)

The movement on the deferred tax asset is as follows:

At 1 January 	 (  56,946)	 ( 15,498)
Expense/(credit)	      21,632  	 ( 41,448)

At 31 December	 (  35,314)	 ( 56,946)

(b) Company		

Deferred tax liability

Accelerated capital allowances	 254,072	 303,606
Gratuity provision	 (    4,156)	 (    4,626)
Leave provision	 (    4,978)	 (    4,587)
Foreign exchange loss	 (       302)	                 -
General provisions for doubtful receivables	 (  99,296)	 (133,618)

Net deferred tax liability	 145,340	 160,775
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28.BORROWINGS
(a) Group

The borrowings are repayable as follows:
				    2016	 2015
	H P loans	T erm loans	 Overdrafts	T otal 	T otal 
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

On demand and within
one year	 7,095  	 399,097	 332,063 	      738,255	    956,929
Between 1 and 2 years	           -	 437,324	                 -	      437,324	     210,833
Between 2 and 5 years	           -	    34,270	                 -	         34,270	     319,188

	  7,095	 870,691	 332,063	 1,209,849	 1,486,950

Amounts due for settlement 
within one year	 7,095	 399,097	 332,063	      738,255	    956,929
Amount due after one year	           -	 471,594	                  -	      471,594	     530,021

	 7,095	 870,691	 332,063	 1,209,849	 1,486,950
The movement in the year
was as follows:
Beginning of the year	 24,734	 977,361	 484,855	 1,486,950	    904,706
Additions	              -	 1,103,522	                 -	 1,103,522   	 1,219,372
Repayments	 (17,639)	 (1,210,192)	                 -	 (1,227,831)	 (  810,629)
Movement in overdrafts        	                 -	                      -	 (152,792)	 (  152,792)	      173,501
	
At 31 December	     7,095	 870,691	 332,063	 1,209,849	 1,486,950

		
		T  erm
	H P Loans	 loans	 Overdrafts	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

At 31 December 2016:
Stanbic Bank Limited	 2,786  	 246,049	 171,232	      420,067
Stanbic Bank Limited 		
(Short term raw materials)	           - 	   80,957	               -	          80,957
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited
(Short term raw materials)	           -	    59,574	               -	           59,574
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	 4,309	 484,111	 158,341	        646,761
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited	           -	                 -	      2,490	            2,490

	 7,095	 870,691	 332,063	 1,209,849

At 31 December 2015:
Stanbic Bank Limited	 8,549	 251,279	 253,164	   512,992
Stanbic Bank Limited 		
(Short term raw materials)	           -	 191,233	               - 	    191,233
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited
(Short term raw materials)		     29,000	               -	      29,000
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	 16,185   	 505,849      	 227,609 	    749,643
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited	             -	                  -	       4,082	         4,082  

	 24,734	  977,361	 484,855	 1,486,950
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28.BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b) Company

The borrowings are repayable as follows:
				    2016	 2015
	H P Loans	T erm loans	 Overdrafts	T otal	T otal
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

On demand and within one
year	      7,095	   399,097	 314,040	      720,232	     941,971
Between 1 and 2 years	                -	   437,324	                -	     437,324	     210,833
Between 2 and 5 years	                -	     34,270	                -	        34,270	     319,188 

	     7,095	    870,691	 314,040	   1,191,826	 1,471,992

Amount due for settlement	
within one year	     7,095	    399,097	 314,040  	     720,232	     941,971

Amount due after one year	              -	    471,594	                 -	     471,594	     530,021

Beginning of the year	 24,734	       977,361	 469,897	 1,471,992	    903,899
Additions	                -	    1,103,522	                  -	 1,103,522	 1,219,372
Repayments	 (17,639)	  (1,210,192)	                  -	 (1,227,831)	 ( 810,629)
Movement in overdrafts           	                -	                       -	 (155,857)	 (   155,857)	     159,350

At 31 December	    7,095	      870,691	 314,040	 1,191,826	 1,471,992

	H P Loans	T erm loans	 Overdrafts	T otal
At 31 December 2016:	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Stanbic Bank Limited	 2,786	 246,049	    153,209	 402,044
Stanbic Bank Limited 
(Short term raw materials)	            -	 80,957	                   -	 80,957
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited
(Short term raw materials)	            -	   59,574	                  -	 59,574
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	    4,309	    484,111	   158,341	 646,761
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited	               -  	                -	       2,490	       2,490

	    7,095   	  870,691	 314,040 	 1,191,826

At 31 December 2015:
Stanbic Bank Limited	 8,549	 251,279	 241,205	    501,033
Stanbic Bank Limited 		
(Short term raw materials)	             -	 191,233	                - 	     191,233
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited				  
(Short term raw materials)		     29,000		       29,000
Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	 16,185   	 505,849	   224,610	    746,644
Kenya Commercial Bank Limited	             -	                  -	       4,082	         4,082

	 24,734	   977,361 	  469,897	 1,471,992
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28.    BORROWINGS (Continued)
(b)     Company (continued)

The bank facilities are denominated in Kenya shillings with variable in-
terest rates. The term loans and overdrafts for Stanbic Bank Limited are 
secured as follows:
•	 Joint and several debenture for KShs 130 million, a variation of joint 

and several debenture for KShs 243 million, a second further joint 
and several debenture for KShs 117 million (an aggregate of Kshs 490 
Million) ranking pari passu with a debenture created by the borrower 
in favour of Commercial Bank of Africa;

•	 Legal charge, being supplemental to the above debentures, for KShs 
490 million created by Standard Group Limited in favour of the bank 
over Land Reference Number 209/18213, Nairobi ranking pari passu 
with a legal charge created over the said property in favour of Com-
mercial Bank of Africa Limited;

•	 Corporate guarantee and indemnity for  KShs 518,000,000 by Baraza 
Limited in favour of the Bank on account of The Standard Group Lim-
ited supported by the Board of Director’s resolution authorising issu-
ance of the same;

•	 Corporate guarantee and indemnity for KShs 359,000,000 by Baraza 
Limited in favour of the bank and on account of The Standard Lim-
ited;

•	 Corporate guarantee and indemnity for KShs 25 Million by the 
Standard Group Limited in favour of the bank on account of Baraza 
Limited; 

•	 Letter of undertaking by The Standard Production Services Limited 
consenting to the sale of Land Reference Number 209/9717, Nairobi 
in the event of default by the Company;

•	 Inter-lenders’ agreement between the Bank, Commercial Bank of Af-
rica and the borrower; and

•	 Hire Purchase Agreements executed between the bank and the Com-
pany and lodgements with the bank of all the relevant logbooks to-
gether with blank transfer forms for the assets financed under the 
Vehicle and Asset Finance Facility. 

The term loans and overdrafts for Commercial Bank of Africa Limited are 
secured as follows:
•	 Joint and several, fixed and floating debenture charge over all the 

assets of the Company, Baraza Limited and The Standard Limited 
for KShs 890 million;

•	 Joint and several, fixed and floating debenture for KShs 110 million 
over all the assets of the Company and Toads Media Group Limited;

•	 Supplemental legal charges for an aggregate of KShs 890 million 
over Land Reference Number 209/18213 in the name of the Compa-
ny together with the title, ranking pari passu with charges of Stanbic 
Bank Kenya Limited;

•	 Corporate guarantee and indemnity from Baraza Limited for KShs 
890 million;

•	 Corporate guarantee and indemnity  from The Standard Limited for 
KShs 890 million;

•	 Corporate guarantees from Toads Media Group Limited in the 
amount of KShs 110 million;

•	 Hire purchase loans are secured by the assets that are the subject of 
those loans;

•	 Deed of assignment of all the rights under the assets financed;
•	 Inter-lenders’ agreement between the Bank, Commercial Bank of Af-

rica and the borrower; and
•	 Original log books and blank transfer forms for various motor vehi-

cles.

28.   BORROWINGS (Continued)
The effective interest rates on the borrowings were as follows:

	H P	T erm	
	L oans	L oans	 Overdraft
	 %	 %	 %

Year ended 31 December 2016

Stanbic Bank Limited	 14.00	 14.00	 14.00

Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	 14.00	 14.00	 14.00

Year ended 31 December 2015

Stanbic Bank Limited	 15.41	 15.41	 15.41

Commercial Bank of Africa Limited	 19.58	 19.58	 19.58

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES	

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000
(a) Group

Trade	 288,995	 151,923
Accruals and other payables	 318,333	 325,604
Provisions	 179,708	 164,585 
Value Added Tax payable	   58,418	    35,451

	 845,454	 677,563
(b) Company

Trade	 226,186	 134,530
Accruals and other payables	 180,660	 263,620
Provisions	 155,675	 151,199
Value Added Tax payable	  90,276	  23,149

	 652,797	 572,498
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 	
(a) Group 

Gratuity provision	    21,745	 21,370

Movement in gratuity 
provision is as shown below:

At 1 January	     21,370	      31,420
Amounts paid in the year	 (  17,763)	 (  49,263)
Additional provision	     18,138	      39,213

At 31 December	     21,745	     21,370
	
(b) Company

Gratuity provision	    13,854	    15,422

Movement in gratuity 
provision is as shown below:

At 1 January	     15,422	     25,497
Amounts paid in the year	 (  17,763)	 (  48,741)
Additional provision	    16,195	    38,666

At 31 December	   13,854	    15,422
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30. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT (CONTINUED)
(b) Company (Continued)

The provision is made based on the contract period. The assumptions made are that all the employees 
will reach the end of the contract period and that there will be no decrease in salaries paid over the 
duration of the contracts.

31.  NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
		  2016	 2015
(a)Reconciliation of profit/(loss) before tax to		  KShs’000	 KShs’000
cash generated from operations 

Profit/(loss) before tax		   269,475	 (395,801)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation	 (Note 17 (a))	   311,101	     283,184
Amortisation - intangible assets	 (Note 19 (a))	 108,294	   95,486
        - prepaid operating lease rentals	 (Note 18)	       1,633	           1,633
Gain on sale of plant and equipment	 (Note 9)	 (6,714)	 ( 12,894)
Loss on write off of plant and equipment		        1,367	       85,694
Interest expense	 (Note 12)	    233,719	     163,638

Operating profit before tax before working
capital changes		  918,875	    220,940

Changes in working capital

Inventories		  (     3,426)	    54,809
Trade and other receivables		  (309,906)	 (252,111)
Trade and other payables		    167,891	   116,560
Employee benefits		            375	 ( 10,050)
Related party balances		  (  17,403)	 (   1,498)

Cash generated from operations	   	  756,406	     128,650

(b) Cash and cash equivalents 

Bank and cash balances		       31,901	       34,453
Bank overdraft	 (Note 28 (a)	 (332,063)	 (484,855)

		  (300,162)	 (450,402)

(c) Analysis of purchase of property 
      and equipment

Additions in the year	 (Note 17(a))	    178,128	  456,334

(d) Analysis of bank loans received

Loan additions during the year	 (Note 28 (a))	 1,103,522	   1,219,372
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32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
The Group contributes to a pension plan established for the benefit of its employees. The pension plan is a defined contribution scheme, whereby 
the Group matches contributions to the fund made by employees up to 7.5% of the employee’s pensionable salary. 

During the year, the Group expensed KShs 60,766,995 (2015 – KShs 55,969,536) in contributions payable.

33. OPERATING LEASES
Outstanding commitments under operating leases are as follows:

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Tenancy payable:

Not later than one year	     64,608	      40,485

Between one and two years	     55,556	        16,216

Between two and five years	     53,132	         9,993

Over 5 years	     75,087	        4,293

	  248,383	       70,987

Amounts charged to profit or loss in the year in respect 

of operating leases	    86,005	      90,730

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Related parties balances not settled at year end are disclosed under note 26.

(a) Key management compensation

The remuneration of Directors and members of key management during the year were as follows:

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Fees for services as a director

Non-executive directors	  10,150	         7,954

Other emoluments

Salaries and other short-term

employment benefits:

Executive directors’ and key management	 84,834	      64,633

Total	 94,984	     72,587

(b) Cash transfers

Cash transfers from The Standard Group Limited

to Baraza Limited	 120,400	     81,076

Cash transfers from Baraza Limited to

The Standard Group Limited	 224,227	 353,021
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(c) Payments on behalf 

Payments by The Standard Group Limited

on behalf of Baraza Limited	 40,031	 918,709

Payments by Baraza Limited

on behalf of The Standard Group Limited	 39,829	 637,514

(d) Interest expense
Interest on shareholder loan	 5,190	 5,190

35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
	               Group

	 2016	 2015

	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Authorised and contracted for	 102,886	 164,000

Authorised but not contracted for	    87,202	 329,576

	 190,088	 493,576

Capital commitments mainly relate to acquisition of new equipment.

36.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in 
order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In 
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or 
sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated 
as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. 

The constitution of capital managed by The Standard Group Limited is as shown below:

	 2016	 2015

	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

Share capital	   408,654	 408,654

Share premium	      39,380	    39,380

Capital redemption reserve	             102	            102

Retained earnings	 1,428,014	 1,252,721

Non - controlling interests	     199,944	     176,716

Equity	 2,076,094	 1,877,573

Total borrowings	 1,209,849	 1,486,950

Less: cash balances	 (     31,901)	  (   34,453)  

Net debt	 1,177,948	   1,452,497   

Gearing	        57%      	            77%      
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37. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN
Company

Details of the employee share option plan of the Company

The Board proposed to the shareholders to set up an Employee Share Ownership Plan (ESOP) as part of strategic measures to align shareholders 
and employee interests. The shareholders approved the same on May 18, 2007. The Trust Deed to the Scheme was approved by the Capital Markets 
Authority on 20 August 2009 and registered on 11 September 2009. Consequently, 5,198,980 unissued ordinary shares of the Company are 
reserved for the ESOP.  In accordance with the Trust Deed, employees with more than one year’s service with the Group may be granted options to 
purchase ordinary shares.

37. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION PLAN (Continued)
Each employee share option converts into one ordinary share of the Company on exercise. Share options consist of 

(a)	 free seed shares where no amounts are paid or are payable by the recipient on receipt of the option; and
(b)	 shares offered to employees at a discounted price. The options carry rights to dividends and voting rights. 

The following share-based payment arrangements were in existence during the current and prior years:

Options series	N umber	E xpiry date		E  xercise price	F air value at
					     grant date

				    KShs	 KShs

(1) Granted on 24 June 2011	 90,640	 Not applicable		 38.69	 36.75

(2) Granted on 20 July 2011	 165,500	 Not applicable		 38.69	 31.00

5,366 options granted on 24 June 2011 were not taken up during the vesting period.

Fair value of share options granted in the year

The weighted average fair value of share options granted in 2011 was KShs 33.03. Options were valued with reference to quoted market prices. 
There were no share options granted in 2016 and 2015.

Movements in share options during the year

The following share options were exercised during year:

Options series	N umber		S  hare price at
	 exercised	E xercise date	 exercise date
			   KShs

(1) Granted 24 June 2011	        39,956	 July  2012	 *26.3

*Represents the weighted average share price during the period of exercise as the options were exercised on a regular basis throughout the period.
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Share options outstanding at the end of the year
 There were no share options outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had outstanding contingent liabilities amounting to KShs 577,750,000 (2015 - KShs 545,650,000) in respect of 
on-going litigation mainly relating to libel charges arising in the normal course of business. KShs 453,594,492 (2015 – KShs 404,166,309) of the 
contingent liabilities have been insured while a total of KShs 124,255,508 (2015 – KShs 140,926,035) have been provided for by the Group to cover 
both the balance and the cost of professional legal services. 
Legal opinions obtained from the Group’s advocates by the Director’s show that no additional liability will arise.

39. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
There are no material events after the reporting date which require to be disclosed.

40. INCORPORATION
The Standard Group Limited is a limited liability Company incorporated and domiciled in Kenya under the Kenyan Companies Act. The ultimate 
holding company is SNG Holdings Limited and is incorporated in the United Kingdom.
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DETAILED COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER                                                         
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

REVENUE	 Appendix II	     3,715,863	   3,748,877

DIRECT COSTS	 Appendix II	 (     924,225)	 (  919,447)

STAFF COSTS	 Appendix II	 (    1,055,486)	 (1,217,779)

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS	 Appendix III	 (        451,357) 	 (   501,431)

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES	 Appendix III	 (       944,307)	 (1,173,866)

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES	 Appendix IV	          90,693	 (     29,700)

FINANCE COSTS	 Appendix IV	 (      230,742)	 (    161,618)

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION		         200,439	 (  254,964)

TAXATION (EXPENSE)/CREDIT		  (        49,322)	       64,749

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFTER TAXATION		             151,117 	 (    190,215)

Appendix I
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DETAILED COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR 
LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

REVENUE

Newspaper and online advertising	 2,103,963	 2,057,714

Newspaper circulation	 1,015,444	 1,101,092

Radio Advertising	     317,299	   306,150

Digital Advertising	     196,583	     175,677

Outdoor advertising	       82,574	      65,790

Magazines and newspapers	                   -	      42,454

	    3,715,863	 3,748,877

DIRECT COSTS

Material cost	      489,907	 478,817

Depreciation	       197,515	 201,359

Contribution	        88,152	   78,929

Operating lease	       60,173	   47,656

Maintenance	      37,909	  50,228

News service	     30,229	  20,638

Production salaries	      13,748	      3,772

Cost of sales outdoor advertising	       6,592	      6,163

Cost of sales PDS	                  -	   31,885

	    924,225	   919,447

STAFF COSTS

Salaries and wages	     885,475	 1,019,324

Personnel costs – other	      120,352	      151,143

Pension contribution	        47,436	     43,365

Other	          2,223	        3,947

	   1,055,486	 1,217,779

Appendix III

Appendix II
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DETAILED COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

Commission	 274,910	 330,094

Transport and distribution costs	   86,875	 106,193

Marketing and promotion	   89,572	   65,144

	 451,357	 501,431

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES

Rent and office expenses	 133,022	      125,155

Amortisation	 109,863	          97,119

Professional fees	   81,386	    164,243

Bad debts	   71,175	   248,349

Depreciation charge	   69,830	        77,160

Vehicle running and hire	   67,506	     60,086

Telephone and postages	   61,561	      49,876

Repair and Maintenance	   60,489	      65,160

Licences	   56,703	     54,097

Travel and accommodation	   54,745	     45,254

General insurance	  46,492	       27,821

Bank charges	  34,285	      31,646

Electricity and water	  26,349	     42,225

Training	   18,412	       19,316

Directors’ fees	   14,413	      13,590

Subscription and donation	   14,110	        11,091

Printing and Stationery	   10,403	      16,885

Entertainment	     8,586	      15,393

Others	      4,977	       9,400

	 944,307	 1,173,866

Appendix III
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Appendix IV
 
DETAILED COMPANY STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 
DECEMBER 2016 (CONTINUED)

	 2016	 2015
	 KShs’000	 KShs’000

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Sale of newspapers/magazines returns 

and production waste	 33,940	     23,139

Miscellaneous income	 23,668	        1,398

Printing services	 17,956	        3,140

Gain on disposal of property, plant and  equipment	 13,871	     12,894

Exchange gain	   1,258	 (  12,692)

Scrapped assets	             -	 (  57,579)

	 90,693	 (  29,700)

FINANCE COSTS
Interest expenses	 230,742	 161,618
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NOTICE is hereby given that the Ninety Ninth (99th) Annual General 
Meeting of the Shareholders of The Standard Group Limited (“the 
Company”) will be held at the Standard Group Centre along Mombasa 
Road, Nairobi, on Friday, 23rd June 2017 at 11.00 a.m. to transact the 
following business:

1.	C ONSTITUTION OF THE MEETING
	 To read the notice convening the meeting and determine if 

quorum is present.

2.	 ORDINARY BUSINESS
A.	RE PORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST DECEMBER 2016
	 To receive, consider and, if thought fit, to adopt the Audited 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st 
December 2016 together with the reports of the Chairman, the 
Group Chief Executive Officer and the Auditors’ thereon.

B.	DI VIDEND
	 To note that the Directors do not recommend payment of a 

Dividend for the year ended 31st December 2016.   
 
C.	ELECTI ON OF DIRECTORS:

(i)	 In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Article of 
Association, Mr. Shaun Zambuni who is a Non-Executive 
Director, retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for 
re-election.

(ii)	In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Article of 
Association,, Mr. Francis Munywoki who is a Director, retires by 
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

(iii)		Dr. James Boyd Mcfie having attained the age of seventy years 
retires in accordance with the Code of Corporate Governance 
Practices for Issuers of Securities to the Public 2015 and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-election. 

(iv)		Pursuant to the provisions of the Section 769 of the Companies 
Act 2015, Dr. James Boyd Mcfie, Mr. Samuel Lerionka Tiampati, 
Ms. Zehrabanu Janmohamed and Mr. Shaun Zambuni being 
members of the Board Finance and Audit Committee, be elected 
to continue to serve as members of the said Committee.

D.	 To approve the remuneration of Directors and Directors’ 
Remuneration Report for the year ended 31st December 2016.

E.	 To re-appoint Messrs KPMG Kenya to continue in office as Auditors 
of the Company for the ensuing financial year and to authorize 
the Directors to fix their remuneration.

3.	S PECIAL BUSINESS
To	consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a 
Special Resolution.

(i)	 “That the name of the Company be and is hereby changed from 
The Standard Group Limited” to “The Standard Group PLC” with 
effect from the date set out in the Certificate of Change of Name 
issued in that regard by the Registrar of Companies.”

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

MILLICENT NG’ETICH
COMPANY SECRETARY

Date: 24th May 2017

NOTE
1.	 A member entitled to attend to attend and vote at the above 

meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his 
stead. If the member is a corporation, the proxy shall be appointed 
in accordance with the Articles of the Company, or be represented 
in accordance with the Articles. Such a proxy need not be a 
member.

2.	 A proxy form may be obtained from the Company’s  website
	 https://www.standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors or at 

Standard Group Centre, Mombasa Road, Nairobi. Shareholders 
who do not propose to be at the Annual General Meeting are 
requested to complete and return the form to the Company 
Secretary of the Company, or the Company’s Share Registrar, 
Image Registrars Ltd, 5th Floor, Barclays Plaza, Loita Street, P.O. 
Box 9287-00100 G.P.O Nairobi, no later than 48 hours before the 
time appointed for holding the meeting.

3.	 The full annual report may be downloaded from the Company’s 
website https://www.standardmedia.co.ke/corporate/investors

Please Note: Transport will be offered to the Shareholders from outside 
I&M Bank Towers, along Kenyatta Avenue, from 9.00 a.m. and back to 
GPO after the close of the meeting

shareholders information

NOTICE OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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PROXY FORM 

The Company Secretary
The Standard Group Limited
P.O. Box 30080-00100
NAIROBI, KENYA

I/We..........................................................................................................................................................................................................

Holder of ID/Passport No. ..........................................................................................................................................................

and of P.O Box.....................................................................................................................................................................................

Shares/CDS Account number  ............................................................Mobile number  ................................................

Being a Member(s) of The Standard Group Ltd, hereby appoint;

Name.........................................................................................................................................................................................................

ID/Passport No. ..................................................................................................................................................................................

Mobile number.....................................................................................................................................................................................

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Metting to be my/our proxy, to vote for me/us and on my/
our behalf at the 99th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday June 23, 
2017 at 11.00 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this  .........................................................................   day of   ....................................................................................2017

Signature(s)    ........................................................................................................................................................................................

Note:
1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his 

stead and a proxy need not be a member of the Company. 

2.	 In the case of a member being a corporate body, the Proxy Form must be completed under 
its common seal or under the hand of an officer or duly authorized attorney of such corporate 
body in writing.

3.	Proxies must be delivered to the Company Secretary or the Company’s Share Registrar, 
Image Registrars Ltd, 5th Floor, Barclays Plaza, Loita Street, P.O. Box 9287-00100 G.P.O 
Nairobi. Alternatively, duly signed proxies can be scanned and emailed to info@image.co.ke 
in PDF format, not later than 11.00 a.m. on Wednesday June 21, 2017 i.e. 48 hours before the 
time appointed for holding the meeting.
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